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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Hop
Fung Group Holdings Limited (the “Company” and with
its subsidiaries, the "“Group”, “us”, "“our” or “we”), I am
delighted to present to our shareholders our 2013 annual

results.

2013 was a year when loose monetary policy was deployed
around the world to help boost the economy. As a whole, the
global economy saw improvements but a dearth of growth
drivers failed to deliver strong consumption growth. Even
as Chinese GDP growth reached 7.7% for the full year, the
series of reform policies implemented resulted in reduced
consumption. The US economy saw improvements on the back
of a healthier property market but unemployment stayed high;
meanwhile, the European economies remain hobbled by the
debt crisis and resulting in slow-paced recovery.

As more than 80% of the Group's corrugated paper ware
packaging sales come from the Chinese domestic market,
reforms and new policies from the Chinese government
heavily impact our business. In the first half of 2013, the
limited loosening of credit and infrastructure policy in China
and austerity measures regarding consumption on the public
purse, compounded with weak demand from the EU and the
US resulted in a sharp decline in overall market demand and
a fall in selling prices. Facing such a difficult environment,
some companies closed their doors. The Group's average
selling price fell as a result, but the overall sales volume
was maintained due to the management team’s decades of
experience and our reputation in the corrugated paper ware
packaging industry.

In the second half of 2013, stimulus packages from the
Chinese government resulted in a recovery in domestic
demand and a more stabilized economy, and the Group's
domestic sales saw a marked improvement. Export sales
also rose on the back of the better job market in the US.
As a whole, the Group saw improved average selling prices
and sales volumes compared to the first half and resulting
improvements in the performance of the business. Compared
to 2012, the full year of 2013 saw improved sales volume but
lower average selling prices.

Facing a volatile business environment, the Group constantly
reviews our production processes, striving to improve
production efficiency and reduce costs. Given increases in
wages and transportation costs as a result of the minimum
wage policy and higher oil prices, the Group's performance
has been affected. However, due to the efforts of the
management, the Group maintained low inventory levels, low
gearing and negligible level of bad debts, thus maintaining a
stable balance sheet and breaking even in operations.
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Looking ahead, the Group remains cautiously optimistic
towards the year 2014. The global economy is expected to see
mild growth, and the Chinese government is likely to launch
economic reform measures that should drive consumption,
and the European economies should emerge from recession.
However, whether the gradual withdrawal of quantitative
easing measures by the US will have an impact on the global
economy and market pricing trends remain to be seen. The
Group will continue to grasp the competitive advantages from
our vertically integrated business model, solidify our market
share and allow our Group to maintain stable long term growth
and a healthy balance sheet, in order to achieve satisfactory
returns.

Lastly, | would like to take this opportunity to give thanks to
the management team and staff members at all levels, and to
show my appreciation for your solidarity against the Group's
challenges and tests, and to thank our customers, suppliers,
bankers and investors for your support over the years. We
will continue to maintain operating cost efficiencies and stable
operations and strive to bring better returns to our Group and
our shareholders.

Hui Sum Kwok
Chairman
25th March, 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWNE D

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the first half of 2013, a modest relaxation in credit
conditions and infrastructure policy in China combined with
austerity measures on consumption using public funds resulted
in a reduction in consumer demand and selling prices, and as
a result the Group's revenue fell 9.3% compared to the first
half of 2012. In the second half of 2013, as demand and selling
prices recovered, the Group’s revenue rose by 24% compared
to the first half, and by 4.1% compared to the same period
of 2012. However, selling prices fell by more in the first half
compared to the increase in the second half, and the Group's
overall average selling price still fell by 4.5% in 2013 compared
to 2012. The increase in sales volume however meant the
Group's overall revenue fell by only 2.3%.

Export revenue fell in the full year of 2013 by 30% as a result
of a poor first half, but domestic revenue rose by 10%. The
Group's upstream business, producing corrugating medium
and linerboard, mostly supplies to the Group’'s downstream
corrugated paper ware business, making corrugated paper
boards and carton boxes, with only a limited portion of
corrugating medium and linerboard sold to customers directly.
The upstream and downstream businesses respectively
accounted for 18% and 82% of revenue, with upstream
revenue rising by 10.5%, and sales volume rising by 20%, and
utilization reaching over 70%. The downstream business saw
revenue fall by 4.8% on flat volumes, with utilization reaching
over 60%.

In 2013, the Group's selling prices largely reflected changes
in raw materials prices, but some costs such as wages and
shipping costs were not adjusted despite fluctuations in
demand or in the Chinese economy as a whole. In order to
further strengthen our finances, the Group improved production
processes to increase efficiency, and strived to reduce
inventories, and lower our gearing levels, thus decreasing our
finance costs and breaking even in operations.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Operating results

The overall sales volume of the Group was improved in the
challenging year of 2013. However, revenue in the first half of
the year was deteriorated by the drop in average selling price,
eventually leading to a slight decline in revenue by 2.3%, from
HK$1,051.1 million in 2012 to HK$1,026.6 million in 2013.
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The fall in cost of sales by 3.1% was in line with the fall
in revenue. Gross profit slightly increased by 1.8%, from
HK$170.6 million to HK$173.6 million. Gross profit margin was
slightly improved from 16.2% to 16.9%.

The increase in other income of 9.5%, from HK$11.6 million
to HK$12.7 million was mainly attributable to the bank interest
income earned from fixed deposits, and exchange gain from
the appreciation of Renminbi.

Selling and distribution costs tremendously rose by 8.4% from
HK$55.7 million to HK$60.4 million. As sales volume rose,
more petrol costs and wages were incurred in managing the
delivery of finished products to customers.

There was an increase of 3.9% in administrative expenses
from HK$68.9 million to HK$71.6 million. Such increment was
caused by increasing staff cost and the accounting treatment
of the grant of share options during the year.

Other expenses were maintained at HK$23.7 million. Less than
HK$0.2 million was recognised as bad debts for the year while
provision for doubtful debts of HK$0.2 million was made.

EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization and unrealized gain on changes in fair value of
derivative financial instruments) fell 2.1%, from HK$116.4
million to HK$114.0 million.

A slight decline in finance costs of 2.8%, from HK$25.4 million
to HK$24.7 million, was owing to lower average borrowing
level maintained throughout the year.

Unrealized gain on changes in fair value of derivative financial
instruments was only recognised for accounting purpose.
It was non-cash in nature and would be reversed to zero at
maturity date.

Profit from operation (profit for the year before unrealized gain
on changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments) slid
by 30.7% from HK$7.58 million to HK$5.25 million. The profit
margin from operation fell from 0.7% to 0.5%.

Profit for the year fell by HK$14.7 million representing 71.4%,
from HK$20.6 million to HK$5.9 million. The fall was mainly
resulted from the non-cash effect of unrealized gain on
changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments from
HK$13.0 million to HK$0.6 million.

Both basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share
dropped from 3.33 HK cents (1.23 HK cents when excluding
the unrealized gain on changes in fair value of derivative
financial instruments) to 0.81 HK cents.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWNE D

Liquidity, financial and capital resources

As at 31st December, 2013, the Group's total cash and cash
equivalents were HK$239.8 million (31st December 2012:
HK$289.2 million), mostly denominated in Renminbi.

Net current assets and current ratio of the Group were
HK$31.1 million (31st December 2012: HK$76.7 million) and
1.06 (31st December 2012: 1.14) respectively.

The Group spent HK$80.2 million on capital expenditures
for annual maintenance on the plants and machineries and
facilities upgrade on waste water processing.

Average inventory turnover was slightly decreased by 16 days,
from 69 days to 53 days. Basically, two-month shipment was
required for delivering waste paper from Europe or the United
States to the plants in the PRC.

Total bank borrowings fell by HK$17.0 million. Gearing ratio
fell from 59.5% to 56.2%. The current bank borrowings were
up by HK$35.1 million while non-current bank borrowings
were down by HK$52.1 million. The balance for total bank
borrowings net of bank balances and cash rose by HK$32.4
million. Net gearing ratio slightly rose from 33.5% to 35.3%.

Contingent liabilities

The tax audits conducted by the Inland Revenue Department
("IRD"”) on the Company and its subsidiaries for the years
of assessment 2004/2005 to 2010/2011 are still on-going.
The IRD had issued protective assessments for the years of
assessment 2004/2005 to 2006/2007 to certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Objections were lodged against all these
assessments. The directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
believe that no additional provision for Hong Kong profits tax
is necessary at the present stage. The outcome and impact of
this matter cannot be determined with reasonable certainty.

OUTLOOK

We still expect improving economic fundamentals to drive
demand growth from both domestic and export markets. At the
same time, the increase in prices meant we need to improve
production efficiency, raise sales volume, reduce raw materials
wastage and energy use in order to combat cost inflation.
We will step up our efforts to develop potential markets and
take the initiative in pricing in order to improve the Group's
earnings.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31st December, 2013, the Group and the processing
factory employed a total workforce of around 1,150 full time
staff (2012: 1,300). Competitive remuneration packages were
offered to employees. The Group may also grant share options
and discretionary bonuses to eligible employees based on the
performance of the Group and individuals.
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Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, aged 54, is the chairman of the Board,
the executive Director of the Company and a co-founder of the
Group. Mr. Hui is responsible for the overall corporate planning,
business development and management of the Group. Mr. Hui
has over 29 years of experience in the corrugated packaging
industry in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Hui Sum Kwok is a brother of Mr. Hui Sum Ping (vice
chairman of the Board, executive Director, and substantial
shareholder of the Company) and Mr. Hui Sum Tai (executive
Director and chief executive officer of the Company), and
the spouse of Ms. Wong Mui (deputy general manager of
the Company). Mr. Hui did not hold any other directorship in
companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.

Mr. Hui Sum Ping, aged 51, is the vice chairman of the Board,
the executive Director of the Company and a co-founder of the
Group. Mr. Hui is responsible for the business development
of the Group. Mr. Hui has over 29 years of experience in the
corrugated packaging industry in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Hui Sum Ping is a brother of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok (chairman
of the Board, executive Director, and substantial shareholder
of the Company), and Mr. Hui Sum Tai (executive Director and
chief executive officer of the Company). Mr. Hui did not hold
any other directorship in companies listed in Hong Kong or
overseas in the last 3 years.

Mr. Hui Sum Tai, aged 47, is the chief executive officer and
the executive Director of the Company. Mr. Hui has joined
the Group since its establishment and is responsible for the
strategic planning and day-to-day management of the Group.
Mr. Hui has over 27 years of experience in the corrugated
packaging industry in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Hui Sum Tai is a brother of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok (chairman
of the Board, executive Director, and substantial shareholder
of the Company) and Mr. Hui Sum Ping (vice chairman of
the Board, executive Director, and substantial shareholder of
the Company). Mr. Hui did not hold any other directorship in
companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.

Ms. Hui Yuen Li, aged 43, is the executive Director, company
secretary and a member of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Ms. Hui is responsible
for the financial management of the Group. Ms. Hui is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Hui worked in an
international accounting firm prior to joining the Group in May
1997.
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Ms. Hui obtained a Degree of Bachelor of Arts with Honours
in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in 1992.
Ms. Hui did not have any relationship with any Directors,
substantial shareholders and senior management of the
Company. Ms. Hui did not hold any other directorship in
companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.

Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric, aged 52, is the independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Chee is a practising Certified
Public Accountant in Hong Kong and a senior partner of Chan
Chee Cheng & Co., a firm of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Chee had worked in two international accounting firms in
Canada and Hong Kong. Mr. Chee is an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario,
Canada.

Mr. Chee obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree of Commerce
(Accounting) with Honours from Birmingham University in
1984. In addition to his appointment to the Company, Mr. Chee
is also an executive director of Mastermind Capital Limited
and a non-executive director of Bestway International Holdings
Limited and used to be an independent non-executive director
of Viva China Holdings Limited (formerly known as Coolpoint
Energy Limited), all these companies listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Chee did not have any
relationship with any Directors, substantial shareholders and
senior management of the Company.

Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan, aged 64, is the independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr.
Yip is a managing director of Guosen Securities (HK) Capital
Company Limited. Mr. Yip has over 32 years of experience in
investment, corporate finance, financial advisory and business
management. Mr. Yip has a long track record of working with
various financial institutions, including UOB Asia (Hong Kong)
Limited as a chief executive officer, and DBS Asia Capital Ltd,
Hong Kong, DBS Securities (Hong Kong) Ltd., Hong Kong and
First Chicago Hong Kong Limited as a managing director.

Mr. Yip obtained a Degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration with Honours from the National University of
Singapore (formerly known as the University of Singapore) in
1971. In addition to his appointment to the Company, Mr. Yip
is also an independent non-executive director of Powerwell
Pacific Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Yip did not have any
relationship with any Directors, substantial shareholders and
senior management of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Wong Chu Leung, aged 66, is the independent non-
executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Wong has over 29 years of experience
in enterprise management and manufacturing operation
management. Mr. Wong is a shareholder and a director of
certain metal ware and plastic ware manufacturing companies/
corporations with manufacturing plants located in the PRC.

Mr. Wong did not have any relationship with any Directors,
substantial shareholders and senior management of the
Company. Mr. Wong did not hold any other directorship in
companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wong Mui, aged 48, is the deputy general manager of
the Group. Ms. Wong has worked for the Group since its
establishment and is responsible for the general administration
of the Group. Ms. Wong is the spouse of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok
(chairman of the Board, executive Director and substantial
shareholder of the Company).

Mr. Tsui Yung Wai, aged 51, is the deputy general manager
of the Group. Mr. Tsui is responsible for the supervision of
procurement, logistics and human resources of the Group. Mr.
Tsui has over 18 years of experience in corrugated packaging
industry in Hong Kong and the PRC. Prior to joining the Group
in February 2008, Mr. Tsui was a shareholder and a director of
a corrugated packaging manufacturing company.

Mr. Tsui is a brother-in-law of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok (chairman of
the Board, executive Director, and substantial shareholder of
the Company), Mr. Hui Sum Ping (vice chairman of the Board,
executive Director and substantial shareholder of the Company)
and Mr. Hui Sum Tai (executive Director and chief executive
officer of the Company).

Ms. Wong Yuk Kwan, aged 42, is the senior accounting
manager of the Group. Ms. Wong is responsible for overseeing
accounting operations of the Group. Ms. Wong obtained a
Degree of Bachelor of Business Administration majoring in
accounting from the University of Houston — Downtown in the
United States in 1994. Ms. Wong worked in an international
accounting firm prior to joining the Group in May 2002.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TREBRE

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group's annual report for the year ended 31st
December, 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has committed to maintaining high corporate
governance standards to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”).

The Company has applied the principles set out in the CG
Code.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year ended 31st
December, 2013, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code, save and except for code
provisions A.2.1, B.1.2 and C.3.3, details will be set out below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’ dealings in the Company’'s securities (the “Code
of Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“"Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code and the Code of Conduct throughout the year
ended 31st December, 2013.

The Company has also established written guidelines no
less exacting than the Model Code (the “"Employees Written
Guidelines"”) for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of
the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written
Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board currently comprises seven members, consisting of
four Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive

Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:

Hui Sum Kwok Chairman

Hui Sum Ping Vice Chairman

Hui Sum Tai Chief Executive Officer

Hui Yuen Li Company Secretary and Member of

Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Chairman of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee and
Member of Nomination Committee

Chairman of Nomination Committee and
Member of Audit Committee

Member of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee

Chee Man Sang, Eric

Yip Kwok Kwan

Wong Chu Leung

The relationships between the members of the Board are
disclosed under “Management Profile” on pages 9 to 11.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
held by Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively.
The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for
the effective functioning and leadership of the Board. The
Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Company’'s business
development and daily management and operations generally.

The Board considers that the responsibilities of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer respectively are clear and
distinctive and hence, written terms thereof are not necessary.
This deviates from the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code
which stipulates that the division of responsibilities between
the chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERME

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of
whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors in respect
of his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all Independent Non-executive Directors
are independent.

Mr. Wong Chu Leung has been serving as Independent Non-
executive Director for more than 9 years. Pursuant to code
provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, his further appointment should
be subject to the passing of a separate resolution by the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

Non-executive Directors and Directors’ Re-election

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that Non-
executive Directors shall be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election, whereas code provision A.4.2 states that
all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject
to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment and that every director, including those appointed
for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company is appointed for a specific term of two years and is
subject to retirement by rotation once every three years.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. The Directors take decisions objectively
in the interests of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management (continued)

All Directors, including Independent Non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews the
contribution required from each Director to perform his/her
responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions
of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation
and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of director’'s responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements. Such induction shall be supplemented by visits
to the Company's key plant sites and meetings with senior
management of the Company.

The Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated
briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading materials on
relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant external training
courses at the Company's expenses.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

(continued)

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, all Directors
had participated in two in-house briefings on updates on
Listing Rules and related matters and had read some articles
and materials relevant to their duties and responsibilities as

Directors.

In addition, the following Directors have attended external
seminars and trainings organized by professional institutions,
qualified professional bodies or regulatory bodies.

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Hui Sum Kwok

Mr. Hui Sum Ping

Mr. Hui Sum Tai

Ms. Hui Yuen Li

Topic

The Economic Transformation
Under the New Leadership (2013
Annual Conference)

The Economic Transformation
Under the New Leadership (2013
Annual Conference)

The Economic Transformation
Under the New Leadership (2013
Annual Conference)

The Economic Transformation
Under the New Leadership
(2013 Annual Conference), HK
& PRC Tax Updates, Mainland
Tax Conference, HKFRS/IFRS
Updates, ESG Reporting & Listing
Compliance Updates, Corporate
Governance & Regulatory Updates,
Regionalizing the RMB franchise,
Treasury and Working Capital
Summit, Seminar on Finance
Shared Services, Forum on
Investor Relations — Conversation
with the Sell Sides, Effective
Investor Relations — Gateway to
Better Corporate Governance,
"Wise Business” SME Summit
2013, Customs Seminar Series:
Customs Anti-Smuggling
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
(continued)

Directors Topic

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric  The Economic Transformation
Under the New Leadership
(2013 Annual Conference), New
Companies Ordinance, Hong
Kong Tax Audits, Internal Control
and Financial Reporting Standard
Updates

Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan Sustainability/ESG for HK
Companies, HKEx Senior Executive
Series: An update on Listing and
Regulatory, In-town Guest Series
— Global Economic and Investment
Outlook

Mr. Wong Chu Leung The Economic Transformation
Under the New Leadership (2013
Annual Conference)

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company's affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with defined written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the
Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website and are
available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
Independent Non-executive Directors and the list of the
chairman and members of each Board committee is set out
under “Corporate Information” on page 2.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERME

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
in reviewing the financial information and reporting process,
internal control procedures and risk management system, audit
plan and relationship with external auditor, and arrangements
to enable employees of the Company to raise, in confidence,
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held three meetings to review interim
results and report for the period ended 30th June, 2013
and annual financial results and reports for the year ended
31st December, 2013 and significant issues on the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control and risk
management systems and scope of work and appointment of
external auditor.

Since the Company has not engaged its auditor to review the
financial information in its interim report, the Audit Committee
has met with the Company's auditor once to discuss matters
arising from the audit of the Company's annual results and
other matters the auditor may wish to raise during the year
ended 31st December, 2013. This deviates from the code
provision C.3.3 of the CG Code which stipulates that the
Audit Committee must meet, at least twice a year, with the
Company's auditor.

Remuneration Committee

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors,
the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors; and
establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her
own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met once to review the
Directors’ remuneration policy and structure of the Company,
and the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and
the remuneration of the Non-executive Directors.

Currently, the remuneration of the senior management is
attended by the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. This deviates from the code provision B.1.2
of the CG Code which stipulates that the Remuneration
Committee should make recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy and structure for all the Directors’ and senior
management remuneration.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)
Details of the remuneration paid to the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31st December, 2013

are set out below:

Remuneration band

A 42 B
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Nil = HK$1,000,000
Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment
of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of Directors, and
assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.

In reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the
Nomination Committee would consider a number of aspects
set out in the Board diversity policy, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry and regional
experience. The Nomination Committee would discuss and
agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board and, where necessary, recommend them to the Board
for adoption.

The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors, and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for re-election at
the forth coming annual general meeting of the Company. The
Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of
diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained and has not
set any measurable objective implementing the Board diversity
policy.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out
in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.
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TEERME

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Corporate Governance Functions (continued)

The Board reviewed the Company's corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and Employee Written Guidelines, and the Company's
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board, the Board
Committee meetings and the Annual General Meeting of the
Company held during the year ended 31st December, 2013 is
set out in the table below:

EXZEE(#)
EERBEE(E)

EXZECRTARABZERERBRREER EFR
BREEBZBIIRFEERER  ARAREETE
PIREERECBREER BITRETARERSE
EESIARBTEE T RRALRE ARG P FH
B E -

EENRZEERECHEESRTHE

BEFERBE_FT=F1+_A=1t—HLEFERT]T
LEZEEH BEFZEQRRRARRKRRBEAX
EZHFEREHIIN TR

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE ER8E

Annual

Remuneration Audit Nomination General

Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEpE BExg yzEse EREE" REZEEE RBRREFKE
Hui Sum Kwok ST AREY 5/5 N/A “NiE A 2/3 N/A g A Al
Hui Sum Ping FFART 5/5 N/A “NiE A 2/3 N/A “NiE A M
Hui Sum Tai TR 5/5 N/A T 2/3 N/A “NiE A M
Hui Yuen Li 10 ] 5/5 il 3/3 A 11
Chee Man Sang, Eric HMEA 5/5 11 3/3 11 0/1
Yip Kwok Kwan 2EY 5/5 N/A 73 A 2/3 1/1 1/1
Wong Chu Leung =W 5/5 11 3/3 11 11
Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held K EHEZEg i REEZ _ZT—=%+_A8

meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of Executive Directors during the year
ended 31st December, 2013.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31st December, 2013.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report”
on pages 40 to 41.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration payable to the external auditor
of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect of
audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31st
December, 2013 is set out below:

Service Category

TRERBE

EEHFRUBBRR2EE(E)

AARBYZHMBEBEPRMBRE 2 ETZER
BN BB [ B ZEBMARE IR -

¥ BB 2 3 BN
HREBE_T—=F+_A=+—HIEFEZEZRH

RIFBGZRBAARBINSZBMEG s BERT S
FHERTT 2 A B D AT S T

Fees Payable

R R ERER
HK$

BT

Audit Services BiZRB 1,600,000
Non-audit Services IEFIZ RIS 140,000
1,740,000

INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, the Board
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company, including the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company's accounting and financial reporting
function.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Directors.
All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each general meeting.

A B BE 42

BE_ZT-=F+_A=T-HALFE E=gCk
AARPZNEBEETIEMEE  BRERZEHAML -
AEBBESHMMBERZBETIEERER UK
mEEIFERESE -

IRz EF

BREBRRZFENEN RARERZHEBIEAN
ME (REERENES) RERAEREBIARER
BB ETRA AAERBRAG LREZRERAMN
BREFTARR RELERBRETRERAZZRRE
REBRTRERRR MBI 2B ETE -
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TEERME

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Under Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, any
one or more shareholders holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company, to require the convening of an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

The Board does not aware of any provisions allowing the
shareholders of the Company to put forward proposals at
general meetings of the Company under the Company's
Articles of Association and the Cayman Islands Law (2013
Revision). Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals
at general meeting may refer to the preceding paragraph to
make a written requisition to require the convening of an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director of the Company are published on the
Company's website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous

enquiries.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:

Address: Workshops E, F and H, 22nd Floor, Superluck
Industrial Centre (Phase 2), No. 57 Sha Tsui Road
and Nos. 30-38 Tai Chung Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Chief Executive Officer/
Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2414 5508

Email: hopfung@hopfunggroup.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and
send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or
statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings.

The Chairman of the Board, all the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and the chairmen of all Board committees (or their
delegates) will make themselves available at the annual general
meetings to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, there was no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents
and these documents are available on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange.

TRERME
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(852) 2414 5508
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31st December, 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal

activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December,
2013 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income on page 42.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of

the Group for the years from 2009 to 2013 is set out on page
116.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment

of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
23 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Details of the movement in the share premium and reserves
of the Group during the year, are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 44.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, Chairman

Mr. Hui Sum Ping, Vice Chairman

Mr. Hui Sum Tai, Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Hui Yuen Li

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric
Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan
Mr. Wong Chu Leung

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Company’'s Articles of
Association, Mr. Hui Sum Ping, Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan and Mr.
Wong Chu Leung shall retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of two years
commencing on 15th September, 2012, which may be
terminated by not less than three months’' notice in writing
served by either party.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in Management
Profile on pages 9 to 11.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEE®E

=S
FARBEAREAL  ARAZEFESHT :

BITES

FERRE SR A
AR EAE
ARTERLE
FRI0A 22+

FE
e
T A8

BYFHITES

MBRERE
EEHLELE
BREAE

BRERABZABERMABNEST(NG  FHRFELE
EEYEERERSAEBR AR EERRBE X
EWESER HERFTEERLBERET-

BRTEFCREARARARTLRBHE B _F—=
FAATHABESEME  ANERN—FTHLAIR
—EAEmMBAREL -

BREXEEEIN  HERNARREERRBFAGERE
BEZEEFHEARRR R EEMMB QRTINS
BN ELERE CEER BRI BT EE—FARLE
ZRIEEH -

ARREEEZBUFNTESRELTRRMELE
TMERZ FERASE - ARRRR  2RBILIEY
TEFHRBIAL -

ARAREERAREBBEEEABHRNFIENAEL
EREREE -

l
f///ﬁ

i,

{
[/

/

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 FE#H%

el



A

&@

gl

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

SHARE OPTIONS Bk

Particulars of the old and new share option schemes of the ZARQTRIZERFERETEZHFEHENGEEMBEERE
company are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial — [ff3£25 °
statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company's TEBEEAQATBRERERN Y EE) -
share options during the year:

Exercise  Outstanding Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed Outstanding
price per  at beginning during during during during at end of
Category Option type Date of grant share of the year the year the year the year the year the year
£ g4
] BREESE RERE SROEE WA ERikd ERfE ERH ERAN AT
(Note) HKS
Uik BT
Directors
EZ
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok E 7.7.2009 0.638 5,690,281 - - - (5,690,281) -
FREEE F 24.10.2013 0.280 - 19,000,000 - - - 19,000,000
Mr. Hui Sum Ping E 7.7.2009 0.638 5,690,281 - - - (5,690,281) -
TRTRE F 24.10.2013 0.280 - 19,000,000 - - - 19,000,000
Mr. Hui Sum Tai E 7.7.2009 0.638 5,690,281 - - - (5,690,281) -
TRRRE F 24.10.2013 0.280 - 19,000,000 - - - 19,000,000
Ms. Hui Yuen Li E 7.7.2009 0.638 1,296,460 - - - (1,296,460) -
FEFT T F 24.10.2013 0.280 - 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric E 7.7.2009 0.638 141,432 - - - (141,432) -
HRELE F 24.10.2013 0.280 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan F 24.10.2013 0.280 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
Mr. Wong Chu Leung E 7.7.2009 0.638 141,432 - - - (141,432) -
BHERLE F 24.10.2013 0.280 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
18,650,167 66,000,000 - - (18,650,167) 66,000,000
Other employees E 7.7.2009 0.638 10,876,120 - - - (10,876,120) -
EtbES F 24.10.2013 0.280 - 6,438,000 - - - 6438000
10,876,120 6,438,000 - - (10,876,120) 6,438,000
Total for all categories
el 29,526,287 72,438,000 - - (29526,287) 72,438,000

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &%2&@iZRERAHE



SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
Note:

The vesting period of the share options granted is determined by
Directors at each time when the options are granted. Holders of share
options granted under the Company’s share option schemes may only
exercise their options during the exercisable periods as follows:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEE®E

EREGE)
Hiit
BEHBEREZBENAEFRERELBRESETE - A2

AIBRERT S TR RS A AEATRATITERTEREZ
fE Rk

Granted under old scheme Granted under new scheme

REBEFERER BBHTER W

Option type E Option type F Maximum % of share options exercisable

EXERE AR 42 FAE S IR AIEERE ERBE DL

1.5.2010 - 30.4.2011 1.5.2014 - 30.4.2015 up to 50%
T = A #50%

1.5.2011 - 30.4.2012 1.5.2015 - 30.4.2016 up to 75% (to the extent not already exercised)
HE A E75% (A HRITEEABR)

1.5.2012 - 30.4.2013 1.5.2016 - 30.4.2017 up to 100% (to the extent not already exercised)

As at 31st December, 2013, the total number of new shares
which might be issued upon exercise of the options that had
been granted and remained outstanding under the Scheme
was 72,438,000 new shares, representing approximately 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

FEAIE100% (A M KITEE BR)
RZE—=F+-A=+—H ARBAERL M

KITEZEREETEMAIRERTZTRDEERSE
72,438,00008 %1% « #MEARBE BE#EITRMH10% °
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,

EERRG - HBERORES 2ER

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December, 2013, the
interests and short positions of the Directors in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352

(a) Shares

B EXCEEE S

RZZT—=F+-"A=+—H &
BARARRBEEFLARBEGKRN((EFHRBEGKL]) E
32 MEBF 2 B EMATL R KB EH 1T
AEFHETESFRHNEETUENE AR R RER
& EFERAARREBEELZE (EELEHFLEY
ERFIEXVER) 2D - BERNDREHFHEE 2R

of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the 2% SAAWT :
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:
(a) Kt
Approximate
Company / percentage of
Name of associated Number and issued share capital
Name of Director corporation Capacity class of securities HERATRE
BESpZ KRR/ RELEEE 57 BEBERER BOEIN
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Company Founder of a discretionary 385,058,793 shares 53.16%
SHRALE NG trust / interest of controlled Long position (Note 1)
corporations 385,058,793 & 7
ZEETELAN/ iF& (B
REiERER
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Company Beneficial owner 7,581,411 shares 1.05%
HRELE N EREBA Long position
7,581,411 KRG
ife
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Company Interest of spouse 750,000 shares 0.10%
TREALE NG [NEpa Long position
750,008 B 2
e
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Company Founder of a discretionary 385,058,793 shares 53.16%
HRTLE NG trust / interest of controlled Long position (Note 1)
corporations 385,058,793 K 7
REETELAN/ ir& (Bt
REEEREE
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Company Beneficial owner 2,952,000 shares 0.41%
SRTRE NG| EREBA Long position
2,952,0008 & 17
ife

.

gl
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

EERRO - HERORES 2 &% (F)

(continued)
(a) Shares (continued) (a) M (&)
Approximate
Company / percentage of
Name of associated Number and issued share capital
Name of Director corporation Capacity class of securities HEBRTRE
EEfg RAR/RELEEE 5% BEHERER BAEE
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Company Interest of a controlled Nil (Note 1) -
AREEE N corporation & (F&E)
REEERER
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Company Beneficial owner 416,189 shares 0.06%
HAERLE NG| EREEA Long position
416,189 i 2
&
Ms. Hui Yuen Li Company Beneficial owner 1,125,000 shares 0.16%
B3Ok G NG EREEA Long position
1,125,000 3
ife
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric ~ Company Beneficial owner 96,000 shares 0.01%
HRAERE NG| EZBAA Long position
96,000 i 17
e
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Hop Fung Industries Limited Founder of a discretionary 7,474 shares of US$0.01 each 74.74%
FRERE ("Hop Fung Industries”) trust / interest of controlled Long position (Notes 1 and 2)
corporations 7474R SR AE0.0IETL 2R
2EEFEIA/ i (k)
XEzEER
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Hop Fung Industries Founder of a discretionary 7,474 shares of US$0.01 each 74.74%
HRTRE trust / interest of controlled Long position (Notes 1 and 2)
corporations 7474 SR EE.IET BN
2REETETA/ e (M R2)
REcEER
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Hop Fung Industries Beneficial owner 2,526 shares of US$0.01 each 25.26%
HRRAE EREBA Long position (Notes 1 and 2)

25260 BREE0.01X T2 Kb
8 (W1 R2)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(a) Shares (continued)

Company /

EERRO HERORES &% (F)

(a) B#H(#&)

Approximate
percentage of

Name of associated Number and issued share capital
Name of Director corporation Capacity class of securities HERARE
BEEpZ RAR/RELEEE 57 BEHERER BAE
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Hop Fung Industries Beneficial owner / founder 5,000 shares of US$0.01 each 50%
FHREALE (Holdings) Limited of a discretionary trust / Long position (Notes 1 and 3)
(“Hop Fung Industries BVI") interest of a controlled 5,000 5 RAELOIET 2R
corporation 8 (HE1R3)
ExEEN/
PEETEIA/
XErEER
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Hop Fung Industries BVI Beneficial owner / founder 5,000 shares of US$0.01 each 50%
HRTRE of a discretionary trust / Long position (Notes 1 and 3)
interest of a controlled 5,000/ B R EE0.01E T 2B
corporation i (1K)
EnBA/
2EETEIA/
REEEER
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Gong Ming Hop Fung Interest of controlled 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
FRERAE Paper Ware Factory Limited corporations deferred shares of HK$1 each
["Hop Fung GM") REEEER Long and short positions
RRARLHMEERAR (Notes 1 and 4]
(lagRH)) 3,000,000 R &
BT ERZEELR
IFERAE (Wi1R4)
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Hop Fung GM Founder of a discretionary 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
FRTEE ALLH trust / interest of controlled deferred shares of HK$1 each
corporations Long and short positions
2EETEIA/ (Notes 1 and 4)
REEEER 3,000,000 & R E &
BT ERZEERR
FRERKE (HE1R4)
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Hop Fung GM Interest of a controlled Nil (Notes 1 and 4) -
HHEEEE YN corporation / short & (W1 Ra)

position of a controlled
corporation
EEEiES/

REEERR



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(a) Shares (continued)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEEHRE

EERRO - HERORES 2 &% (F)

(a) B#H(#&)

Approximate
Company / percentage of
Name of associated Number and issued share capital
Name of Director corporation Capacity class of securities HERARE
EEfg RAR/RELEEE 57 BEHERER BAEE
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Fung Kong Hop Fung Interest of controlled 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
SHALE Paper Ware Factory Limited corporations deferred shares of HK$1 each
("Hop Fung FG") REiEER Long and short positions
FEtEEnmaRAR (Notes 1, 4 and b)
=) 3,000,000 & &
BT BEREREER
FRRAR (BT 4R5)
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Hop Fung FG Founder of a discretionary 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
FRTEE ALEHE trust / interest of controlled deferred shares of HK$1 each
corporations Long and short positions
2EEFATA/ [Notes 1, 4 and 5)
RzERs 3,000,000 8 REE
BT BRERELR
TR RAR (M1 4R5)
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Hop Fung FG Interest of a controlled Nil (Notes 1, 4 and 5) -
RRRAE ALEH corporation / short & (3 4R5)
position of a controlled
corporation
XpiEER/
REZEAE
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Applewood Forest Limited Founder of a discretionary trust 1 share of US$1 100%
SREALE PEETELA Long position (Notes 1 and 6)
1REE1ET 2R
it e (M1 ke)
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Profit Luck Limited Founder of a discretionary trust 100 shares of HK$ 1 each 100%
HRELE MEERAF PRETELA Long position (Notes 1, 6 and 7)
100 8RAEEET KA
fr& (31 6%7)
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Profit Sun Limited Founder of a discretionary trust 1 share of HK$1 100%
SRERE BHNERAA 2EETAUA Long position (Notes 1, 6, 7and 8)
REEIETZRG

#E (162 758)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(a)

Shares (continued)

Notes:

The 385,058,793 shares are owned by Hop Fung
Industries. The issued share capital of Hop Fung
Industries is owned as to 74.74% and 25.26% by Hop
Fung Industries BVI and Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively.

The issued share capital of Hop Fung Industries BVI
is owned as to 11.81%, 11.81%, 38.19% and 38.19%
by Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, Mr. Hui Sum Ping, Fullwood
Holdings Limited (”Fullwood”) and Goldspeed Holdings
Limited (“Goldspeed”) respectively. Fullwood is wholly
owned by Pinecity Investments Limited ("“Pinecity”)
and Pinecity is wholly owned by HSBC International
Trustee Limited (“HSBC") in its capacity as the trustee
of Hui & Wong 2004 Family Trust, a discretionary trust
the founder of which is Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and the
discretionary objects of which include family members
of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok. Goldspeed is wholly owned by
Goldkeen Assets Management Limited (“Goldkeen”)
and Goldkeen is wholly owned by HSBC in its capacity
as the trustee of HSP 2004 Family Trust, a discretionary
trust the founder of which is Mr. Hui Sum Ping and the
discretionary objects of which include family members
of Mr. Hui Sum Ping. Accordingly, each of Mr. Hui Sum
Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed to be interested
in the 385,058,793 shares under the SFO.

Hop Fung Industries is a holding company of the
Company and therefore an associated corporation of
the Company under the SFO. The entire issued share
capital of Hop Fung Industries is US$100 divided into
10,000 shares of US$0.01 each which is owned as to
7,474 and 2,526 shares by Hop Fung Industries BVI and
Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively. Under the SFO, each of
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed to
be interested in the 7,474 shares of US$0.01 each in
Hop Fung Industries.

Hop Fung Industries BVI is a holding company of Hop
Fung Industries and therefore an associated corporation
of the Company under the SFO. The entire issued
share capital of Hop Fung Industries BVI is US$100
divided into 10,000 shares of US$0.01 each which is
owned as to 1,181, 1,181, 3,819 and 3,819 shares by
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, Mr. Hui Sum Ping, Fullwood and
Goldspeed respectively. Under the SFO, each of Mr.
Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Ping is interested and/
or deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 5,000
shares of US$0.01 each in Hop Fung Industries BVI.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(a)

Shares (continued)

Notes: (continued)

4.

Hop Fung GM is a subsidiary of the Company and
therefore an associated corporation of the Company
under the SFO. The entire issued share capital of Hop
Fung GM is HK$3,000,100 divided into 100 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each and 3,000,000 non-voting deferred
shares of HK$1 each. The 3,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung GM are
beneficially owned by Hop Fung Group (HK) Limited
("Hop Fung Group HK") which is owned as to 91.43%
and 8.57% by Hop Fung Holdings Limited (“Hop Fung
Holdings (BVI)"”), and Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively.

The issued share capital of Hop Fung Holdings (BVI) is
owned as to 50%, 11.81% and 38.19% by Mr. Hui Sum
Kwok, Mr. Hui Sum Ping and Goldspeed respectively.
Under the SFO, each of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui
Sum Ping is deemed to be interested in the 3,000,000
non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung
GM.

Pursuant to an option deed dated 19th August, 2003,
Hop Fung Group HK and its nominee granted to Hop
Fung Group Company Limited (“Hop Fung Group
(BVI)"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
an option to purchase from them such 3,000,000 non-
voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung
GM. Accordingly, each of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr.
Hui Sum Ping is deemed to have a short position in
the underlying shares of the option granted under the
option deed pursuant to the SFO.

Hop Fung FG is a subsidiary of the Company and
therefore an associated corporation of the Company
under the SFO. The entire issued share capital of Hop
Fung FG is HK$3,000,100 divided into 100 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each and 3,000,000 non-voting deferred
shares of HK$1 each. The 3,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung FG are
beneficially owned by Hop Fung Group HK. Under the
SFO, each of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Ping
is deemed to be interested in the 3,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung FG.

Pursuant to an option deed dated 19th August, 2003,
Hop Fung Group HK and its nominee granted to Hop
Fung Group (BVI) an option to purchase from them
such 3,000,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$1
each in Hop Fung FG. Accordingly, each of Mr. Hui Sum
Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed to have a short
position in the underlying shares of the option granted
under the option deed pursuant to the SFO.
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EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Shares (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Applewood Forest Limited (“Applewood”) is a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The entire
issued share capital of Applewood is US$1 comprising
1 share of US$1 which is wholly owned by Pinecity
and is ultimately owned by HSBC in its capacity as the
trustee of Hui & Wong 2004 Family Trust. Applewood
is an associated corporation of the Company under the
SFO. Under the SFO, Mr. Hui Sum Kwok is deemed to
be interested in the 1 share of US$1 in Applewood.

Profit Luck Limited (“PLL") is a company incorporated
in Hong Kong. The entire issued share capital of PLL
is HK$100 comprising 100 shares of HK$1 each which
is directly owned by Applewood, a company indirectly
owned by HSBC through its wholly owned subsidiary,
Pinecity. Under the SFO, Mr. Hui Sum Kwok is deemed
to be interested in the 100 shares of HK$1 each in
PLL ultimately owned by HSBC in its capacity as the
trustee of Hui & Wong 2004 Family Trust. Details of
Applewood are set out in note 6 above.

Profit Sun Limited (“PSL") is a company incorporated
in Hong Kong. The entire issued share capital of PSL
is HK$1 comprising 1 share of HK$1 which is directly
owned by Applewood, a company indirectly owned by
HSBC through its wholly owned subsidiary, Pinecity.
Under the SFO, Mr. Hui Sum Kwok is deemed to be
interested in the 1 share of HK$1 in PSL ultimately
owned by HSBC in its capacity as the trustee of Hui &
Wong 2004 Family Trust. Details of Applewood are set
out in note 6 above.

Share options

Details of the Directors’ and their associates’ interests
in share options of the Company are set out in the
section headed “Share Options” in this report.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31st December, 2013.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December, 2013, the following shareholders had
interests or short positions in shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
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R E GO FEBGFEZECLMATHERZITAE
ARRAF] - PRV A R BB RAARE A D+ %A #

by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as zZ AR :
otherwise notified to the Company:
Approximate
Number percentage of
Number of of share issued share capital
Name of shareholder Capacity issued shares held options held Note(s) HERTRE
RR28/% 8% BRERTRGEA FrisBREYE i3 BREAIN
Hop Fung Industries Beneficial owner 385,058,793 - 1 53.16%
EGBEEA
Hop Fung Industries BVI Interest of a controlled corporation 385,058,793 - 1,2 53.16%
REEEER
Fullwood Interest of controlled corporations 385,058,793 - 1,234 53.16%
REZEER
Pinecity Interest of controlled corporations 385,058,793 - 1,234 53.16%
REEEER
Goldspeed Interest of controlled corporations 385,058,793 - 1,2,3,5 53.16%
REZEER
Goldkeen Interest of controlled corporations 385,058,793 - 1,2,3,5 53.16%
REEERER
HSBC Trustee of discretionary trust 385,058,793 - 1,2,3,4,5 53.16%
PEEAREA
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Beneficial owner / founder of a 393,390,204 19,000,000 1,2,3,4,6 56.93%
FRERAE discretionary trust / interest of
controlled corporations / interest of
Spouse
BREBEA/2RETAIN/
RtEks/ REER
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Beneficial owner / founder of a 388,010,793 19,000,000 1,2,3,5,7 56.19%
SRTLRE discretionary trust / interest of
controlled corporations
BREBEA/2RERALN/
REZEER
Hallgain Management Interest of controlled corporations 102,546,000 - 8 14.16%

Limited ("Hallgain")

REEEER
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

FERR(

Notes: ffaE -

The 385,058,793 shares are owned by Hop Fung Industries.

The issued share capital of Hop Fung Industries is owned as to
74.74% and 25.26% by Hop Fung Industries BVI and Mr. Hui
Sum Tai respectively and Hop Fung Industries BVI is deemed to
be interested in the 385,058,793 shares under the SFO.

The issued share capital of Hop Fung Industries BVI is owned
as to 11.81%, 11.81%, 38.19% and 38.19% by Mr. Hui Sum
Kwok, Mr. Hui Sum Ping, Fullwood and Goldspeed respectively.

The entire issued share capital of Fullwood is indirectly held
by HSBC through its 100% controlled corporation, Pinecity in
its capacity as the trustee of Hui & Wong 2004 Family Trust, a
discretionary trust the founder of which is Mr. Hui Sum Kwok
and the discretionary objects of which include family members
of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok. Accordingly, each of Fullwood, Pinecity,
HSBC and Mr. Hui Sum Kwok is deemed to be interested in the
385,058,793 shares under the SFO.

The entire issued share capital of Goldspeed is indirectly held
by HSBC through its 100% controlled corporation, Goldkeen
in its capacity as the trustee of HSP 2004 Family Trust, a
discretionary trust the founder of which is Mr. Hui Sum Ping
and the discretionary objects of which include family members
of Mr. Hui Sum Ping. Accordingly, each of Goldspeed,
Goldkeen, HSBC and Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed to be
interested in the 385,058,793 shares under the SFO.

Of 393,390,204 shares, Ms. Wong Mui is directly interested in
750,000 shares and is deemed to be interested in 392,640,204
shares and 19,000,000 share options of the Company under the
SFO as she is the spouse of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, the Director
and a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Ms. Jian Jian Yi is deemed to be interested in 388,010,793
shares and 19,000,000 share options under the SFO as she is
the spouse of Mr. Hui Sum Ping, the Director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Hallgain is deemed to be interested in 102,546,000 shares.
Hallgain held 35.40% of Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
("Kingboard Chemical”) which is directly interested in the
shares of the Company. Jamplan (BVI) Limited (“Jamplan”)
is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kingboard Chemical. Jamplan
wholly owns Kingboard Investments Limited which is directly
interested in the shares of the Company.

£%2385,058,793% f& 17 FAHop Fung Industriesf# & °

Hop Fung IndustriesZ B # 1T 2X fAHop Fung
Industries BVIRFFRREE D RIHEET4.74% K
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BEEESL HAZAATARELAE  MaEELY
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G 1E0 - Fullwood ~ Pinecity - HSBC K &F #R B £ £ &
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BREEEZREKE - At - RIEFFRBAEGK
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19,000,00017 B8 A5 4 2 A 5 o
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company's
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31st December, 2013.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Share Options” above,
at no time during the year was the Company, any of its holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate. In addition, save as
disclosed above, none of the Directors, their spouse or children
under the age of 18 were granted any right to subscribe for
the securities of the Company or had exercised any such right
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the transactions set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements, no other contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company is or was
materially interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st December, 2013, the aggregate
amount of turnover attributable to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for less than 13% of the Group's
turnover.

The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 56% of the
Group's total purchases and the purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 20% of
the Group's total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5%
of the Company's share capital) has any interest in the Group's
five largest suppliers.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group did not enter into any related party
transactions or continuing related party transactions which fall
under the definition of “Connected Transaction” or “Continuing
Connected Transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which shall oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately HK$76,000.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors strive to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to enhance shareholder value and safeguard
shareholder interests. The corporate governance principles of
the Company emphasise the importance of a quality Board,
effective internal controls and accountability to shareholders.
The Company has met the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange throughout the year ended 31st December, 2013,
except with the following deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1

o Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the division of
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set
out in writing.

o There are no written terms on division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
The Directors consider that the responsibilities of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer respectively
are clear and distinctive and hence written terms
thereof are not necessary.

Code Provision B.1.2

o A deviation from the code provision B.1.2 is that the
Remuneration Committee of the Company reviews
and makes recommendations to the Directors on the
remuneration packages of the executive Directors only
but not the senior management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

Code Provision B.1.2 (continued)

o Currently, the remuneration of the senior management
is attended by the Chairman and the Chief Executive

Officer of the Company.

Code Provision C.3.3

o Code provision C.3.3 stipulates that the audit committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s
auditor.

o Since the Company has not engaged its auditor to

review the financial information in its interim report, the
Audit Committee has met with the Company’s auditor
once a year to discuss matters arising from the audit
of the Company’s annual results and other matters the
auditor may wish to raise. The Audit Committee has
met with the Company's auditor once during the year
ended 31st December, 2013.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has acted as auditor of the
Company since its incorporation.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Hui Sum Kwok

Chairman
25th March, 2014

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEE®E

XER(E)

<F RIS 3CB. 1.2k (45)

>

BAl G SREEEBZHFMAADREERITR
HERIE -

57 RIE 32C.3.31%

FRIEXCIIGMEREZZE
ARBMBITRIMAEH -

pill
i3
/nT
_m
Bt
!

iy
M

s HRARFAYEBZREERHMEHTHBRSE 2
MBEHN BRZEESFRADAZEUME
T—REZF URRBAARRZFXEME
EZEERZBMARRELZEMERE -BE
R+ A=+—HLEFEHH FZ
ZEGCHEARRRBEBIT - REH -

DNBERE
READARHTGZENRBERRA - RARE

B ARRAIED25% 2 EHTRABLEIHARAL
A -

¥ BLED

BEMERTEREITAEARAEMAMIIAN  —
B EEAR R R BED -

ARBBREERRBFASRELZERREY HER
FEEMITRARRZEENZRER -

KREFE

E
FFARE
—E-MFE=AZ=+AH

¢

i

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 FE#%

aunlly



Deloitte
=20

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hop Fung Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 42 to 115, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st December, 2013,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &%2&@iZiRERAHT
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’'s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st
December, 2013 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25th March, 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ReBEaskAEtEEKRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013

B —FT—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

2013 2012
NOTES HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
B 5 THER FHET
Revenue W = 7 1,026,623 1,051,097
Cost of sales 4 & AR (853,037) (880,542)
Gross profit EAH 173,586 170,555
Other income Hab g A 8 12,666 11,556
Selling and distribution costs HE RS HKA (60,423) (55,714)
Administrative expenses THAX (71,602) (68,878)
Other expenses HAb (23,735) (23,717)
Finance costs BA TS 7R 9 (24,737) (25,412)
Changes in fair value of derivative PTESMIAATE
financial instruments 2 E#H 19 4,329 18,444
Profit before taxation IR bE 10,084 26,834
Income tax expense FriSfi > 10 (4,186) (6,245)
Profit for the year, attributable to owners ZN/NEIE PN
of the Company FE A 11 5,898 20,589
Other comprehensive income for the year: FEH M2 mIkE :
Items that may be reclassified HEAEEF 7S
subsequently to profit or 10ss: Bm2EE -
Exchange differences arising from MEBINETE 2
translation of foreign operations ME X ZRE 27,315 31,750
Total comprehensive income for the year, AR FIHEE ABIEFE
attributable to owners of the Company 2HEMEEEE 33,213 52,339
HK cents HK cents
AL P
Earnings per share TFREF 14
- basic — 5K 0.81 3.33
— diluted —#58 0.81 3.33

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &%2&@iZiRERAHT




AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
R-ZFE—=F1+=-HA=1—H

2013 2012
NOTES HK$’000 HK$' 000
B 7 FET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BE NRE 15 1,429,963 1,398,415
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights T {FFHEENEERKIE 16 22,887 23,216
1,452,850 1,421,631
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 21 17 102,296 143,637
Trade and other receivables B R EAMEWIKIE 18 220,132 175,216
Deposits and prepayments e RFEMFK 7,490 12,642
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights  tTiiFREENHERKE 16 627 621
Derivative financial instruments PTESBTA 19 1,173 1,489
Bank balances and cash RITEBERS 20 239,767 289,159
571,485 622,764
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade, bills and other payables BH5 ZBEREMEMNKIE 21 180,592 221,339
Taxation payable JE A HEIE 11,384 10,501
Derivative financial instruments PTESBTA 19 222 1,186
Unsecured bank borrowings EEARITEE 22 348,195 313,049
540,393 546,075
Net current assets REBEEFE 31,092 76,689
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAE 1,483,942 1,498,320
Capital and reserves BARFE
Share capital & 7 23 72,439 72,439
Share premium and reserves R s E R E 1,077,359 1,041,968
Total equity, attributable to owners AATEEAELER
of the Company Fak 1,149,798 1,114,407
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Unsecured bank borrowings EERBITEE 22 297,425 349,554
Deferred taxation RER IR 24 36,719 34,359
334,144 383,913
1,483,942 1,498,320

The consolidated financial statements on pages 42 to 115 were R EBA2F115BE Y AV KREER T —WE= A
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on —+ A HKEZ S ARSEERE  THTIESHK

25th March, 2014 and are signed on its behalf by: REZE .
DIRECTOR £ % DIRECTOR £ %
HUI SUM KWOK & % Bl HUI SUM PING FF#&F
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\

x\\\\\\}\

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEREREHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —FT—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

Share
Share Share Special  Translation options Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
Bax  ROEE  KARE EXRE BRERE RENE b

HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TR TR T T TERL T T

(Note)
(hzE)

At Tst January, 2012 R-E-—F-F—-H 48,292 425,382 (107,444) 106,494 16,884 530,197 1,019,805
Profit for the year FEFE = - - - - 20,589 20,589
Exchange differences arising from R Z§HNEHK 7

translation of foreign operations B EZERERE

and total other comprehensive i 2 E U

income for the year ek - - - 31,750 - = 31,750
Total comprehensive income FEZENGES

for the year - - - 31,750 - 20,589 52,339
Recognition of equity-settled BRI IER 2

share-based payments IRAE 22 H - - - = 204 = 204
Issue of shares under rights issue  RE# R E1THR 7 24,147 19,316 = = = = 43,463
Share issue expenses ERHAX - (1,404) - - - - (1,404)
At 31st December, 2012 W-E-—%+-A=1+-H 72,439 443,294 (107,444) 138,244 17,088 550,786 1,114,407
Profit for the year FEAHE - - - - - 5,898 5,898
Exchange differences arising from 2 Z 5 E% 2

translation of foreign operations EXEBREE

and total other comprehensive  Eft 2 A

income for the year ok - - - 27,315 - - 27,315
Total comprehensive income FEZENGEE

for the year - - - 27,315 - 5,898 33,213
Recognition of equity-settled BRARELS

share-based payments KRBTz 2 i - - = = 2,178 = 2,178
At 31st December, 2013 R-E-=%+-A=1-H 72,439 443,294 (107,444) 165,559 19,266 556,684 1,149,798

Note: B &E -

Special reserve represents the difference between the costs of B RIEHEAD TN E QT 2R EMK A LEE A L4 7K
investments in subsidiaries of the Company and the aggregate amount ERATIERAHALEDLMER AT EISERIEERANBEZE
of the non-voting deferred share capital of Fung Kong Hop Fung Paper RE-ZE=fF£EEHMKEZWEBATZRARME =5 -
Ware Factory Limited and Gong Ming Hop Fung Paper Ware Factory

Limited and the nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries

acquired as a result of the group reorganisation in 2003.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &%2&@iZiRERAHT



Operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
(Reversal of) impairment losses on
trade receivables
Allowance for inventories
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Release of prepaid lease payments
on land use rights
Interest income
Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Share-based payment expense
Changes in fair value of derivative
financial instruments

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Decrease in inventories

(Increase) decrease in trade and other
receivables

Decrease (increase) in deposits and
prepayments

(Decrease) increase in trade,
bills and other payables

Settlement of derivative financial
instruments, net

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid
Income tax refund

Net cash from operating activities

Investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Interest received
Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
E-F-=F A=t ALEE

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FH&T
REEE
DA:DRAIDE 10,084 26,834
BUEH AT AR
B 15 A AR 24,737 25,412
B RWFEr (BERERE)

A EE (804) 185
GFERE 145 151
ME - BERERETE

79,192 76,587
BB 4 b AR

HEFIE 624 616
FE WA (3,568) (2,924)
HEME BEREZE

518 (U as) 712 (109)
ARRH 2 H 2,178 204
TEeMTEAFEZE

(4,329) (18,444)
MBEE BRI & E
RERE 108,971 108,512
FER D 41,196 44,500
B 5 I H i & W IR
(3% hn) &k 4 (40,827) 21,346
Re RIBAMAFOR D ()
5,152 (5,719)
B5 ERREMENRIEA
O 180 (48,052) 6,142
UPTEemMT ELE  F538
3,681 5,437
EEELECZES 70,121 180,218
B (1,626) (11,284)
REFFEH 683 =
RETHEEZHSFE 69,178 168,934
BEFEE
WM BFE R&E (80,219) (92,786)
2 U FE 3,568 2,924
HEME  BEREE
P18 51 124 544
RETEFAZREESFE (76,527) (89,318)

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 FE#%



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013

B oE——Ff—HA=1—HIFE

Financing activities

New bank loans raised

Other bank borrowings drawn

Increase (decrease) in trust receipt loans
Repayment of bank loans

Repayment of other bank borrowings
Proceeds from issue of shares
Expenses on issue of shares

Interest paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1st January

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31st December
represented by bank balances and cash

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &%2&@iZiRERAHT
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1= FEUIR & 538 o0 Ot )
EERITER
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ITIRAD TS 3RIR
TITRAD B X

BEAFE

METHEAZREFEE
RERBREEERDFHE
R—A-HHEER
Re%E
EREH X
R+=B=+—H

REeERkBEEE
RITHBNIERE

2013
HK$'000
FHEx

319,172

895,391

5,591
(372,440)
(869,697)

(24,737)

(46,720)

(54,069)

289,159

4,677

239,767

2012
HK$' 000
THET

347,724
933,162
(72,158)
(363,888)
(957,715)
43,463
(1,404)
(25,412)

(96,238)

(16,622)

299,747

6,034

289,159



NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company with limited
liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman lIslands and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”). Its parent is Hop Fung Industries
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and its ultimate parent is Hop Fung Industries
(Holdings) Limited, a company also incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. The address of the registered office
of the Company is disclosed under Corporate Information
section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 32.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009 - 2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —F—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

—REH

ARRBBERSEEEMNE22ERENE(—NAR—
FEIEN - Kir s RiEE]) KA SRS MK
VRERREBRAT HRODREBBEZSHFF
ERAF (B LW e ARAAZERARAR
R R Z B &5t 5 32 ZHop Fung Industries
Limited - & 4% & 2 7] Bl 2 70 25 88 B2 & Af & wE 1
X 37 ZHop Fung Industries (Holdings) Limited °
AAal M EE 2 i SR AFR AR ER
A e

AEMBHRERAUAET (BT 25 BLTAAE
NEIZINEEEE -

AKRAAABEBREEZERAR  EXTEHEBRARAIZEE
EBHNREI2 -

A RRBI cBERUBHREERN(E
BYBHREEL]) ZER

EREE AEECSHRATIBELSIMLE
B2 Rl RRERT BB B REEL

BAMBREENZEE

“ERAEE-T——%

BRNEBMBREEAN

FRYE
BAMBREENETR BRE-HEMBEER
A H] MBaE

BAMBREEANE 0% - SAMBHRR AELHR

ERUBRELENENE BERAGER
REBMBREER MR BENEED
E12R 2187
ERUEREENSE0R HRAVERE
EREMEREENENG AERH

BB BREERNE 125
ESH SRS £ R E135

RENL X B
AF(EHE

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 FE#

-

il



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
BE—F=—F+-_A=1—HIFE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee Benefits

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine

Amendments to HKAS 1

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income.
Upon the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1,
the Group's ‘statement of comprehensive income’ is
renamed as the ‘statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income’. Furthermore, the amendments
to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made
in the other comprehensive income section such that
items of other comprehensive income are grouped into
two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items that may
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis — the amendments do not change the option
to present items of other comprehensive income either
before tax or net of tax. The amendments have been
applied retrospectively, and hence the presentation of
items of other comprehensive income has been modified
to reflect the changes. Other than the above mentioned
presentation changes, the application of the amendments
to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss,
other comprehensive income and total comprehensive
income.

~ HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &2&£®mZRERAR
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

Financial Instruments®
Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures®

Investment Entities’

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets'

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting’

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle?

Levies'

January, 2014, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July,
2014. Early application is permitted.

2 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will
be determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9
are finalised.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July,

2014, with limited exceptions.

M BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —F—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —FT—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

W

avlh

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
the requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition and further
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for
hedge accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement are subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to change in financial liabilities’ credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change
in the fair value of the financial liability designated
as fair value through profit or loss was presented in
profit or loss.

~ HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &2&£®mZRERAR
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting. However, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the
types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial items
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with
the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about an
entity's risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9
in the future will not have a significant impact on the
amounts reported in respect of the Group's financial
assets and financial liabilities.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the results and the financial position
of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &%2&@iZiRERAHT
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group losses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs).

e MR R MR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
BE—FT=—F+-A=1—HIFE

TESTHEE)

GEEE (W)
. THRRAFERRNNYELEN -

HEERBERBR EXHR=BZEHERRZEH
—HHZRAE  AAKEEEHERTDAZS
WIET -

MB AR ZARA ABRRAEERSARNMEAR R
ZEEHRERERLG YR AKEXRERBNER A
ZEGERRL - ABME  FAMKBRLE
MEBARZBMARRAX B AR ERSEHEL
EHEFAGERERAMEEARKEER  EEX
SETBENEENBARZBEHAIL -

WERE AKESHNER RN RKFELH
B UERECEABRREARE 2 EFHEK—
B o

AEBEARRBZAEEERAE « s - /A
AXEEBASEREZRARZNEACRE B
R E BRRBYH -

MAEBAEH —RKM B QR A EGIE - ek
BRITNBEAER - WIRTIIMENERTE
(B WA ERFELE(IRE DA FENEN
LlijZMBRARANEE (BREAE) RABREM
FEBERNEAMREE - BENZMBERARR
HitrmPasRRANEHRE  SOAKEEE
BEHEZMBRARMNMEEEEXLRERAR (A
BRERTEMBREENMREEFEHOE
EHRGRBRES —BHNER)

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 FE#

//

y

g

/

Y

I

/

i

i

Wil



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
land and buildings held for use in the production or
for administrative purposes, other than construction
in progress as described below, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are calculated using
the first-in, first-out method.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets comprise financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income
is included in changes in fair value of derivative financial
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL comprise financial assets held
for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

° it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The changes in fair value of derivative financial
instruments recognised in profit or loss include any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period ranged from 5 to 150 days, as
well as observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or
loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B2 —F—=F+_H=1—HIFEF

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than those financial liability classified as
at FVTPL, of which the interest expense is included in
changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments.
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL comprise financial liabilities
held for trading.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade, bills and
other payables and unsecured bank borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —F—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

TESTHEE)

EMIAE(E)
HBEEERERZTA ()
UR-FEGFAERZHEEE

KR FEFABSEZMBREBRFERIS 2R
HaIE -

WETHENDBRFERS 2MBRE :

s EAMBAENTIEZEMNERNEHAEME
o

o RYVEHERE RV BABBAKEHFAE

B EremIAEaN —#D  XAL
HEBRBEREERENER 3

. BUMBRBAYEEEREREREMNT
BMpTHETA -
B HAE
ESBaE (BEES ERRAMERTE
REEMRTHE) L HRABRAZERE
AR E R
prESBTA
AT BB RIENTETAANTIA 2 AFE

BR - HERBERARAERFEENTE A
B IS BRI IE SR o

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 FE#

o
"
7

i)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share options reserve.
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will continue to be held in share options reserve.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)
Leasehold land and building (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid
lease payments on land use rights” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred taxes are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme/
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair values of derivatives and other financial
instruments

Derivative financial instruments, including foreign
exchange forward contracts and interest rate swaps, are
carried at the end of the reporting period at fair value as
disclosed in note 19. The best evidence of fair value is
quoted prices in an active market. Where quoted prices
are not available for a particular financial instrument,
the directors of the Company use valuation techniques
with observable market inputs to the extent available to
estimate the fair value. The use of methodologies, models
and assumptions in pricing and valuing these financial
assets and liabilities is subjective and requires varying
degrees of judgement by management, which may result
in significantly different fair values and results.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Allowance for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the directors of the
Company would evaluate ageing analysis of inventories
and compare the carrying value of inventories to their
respective net realisable values based on latest market
prices and current economic conditions. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in determining such
allowance. If conditions which have an impact on the
net realisable value of inventories deteriorate/improve,
additional allowances/reversal of allowances already made
may be required.

Allowance for trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the directors of the Company take into consideration
the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and
equipment with respect to depreciation, the directors
of the Company estimate the useful lives of various
categories of property, plant and equipment according to
their experiences over the usage of property, plant and
equipment and also by reference to the relevant industrial
norm. The useful lives of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed annually. If the expectations differ from the
previous estimates, the changes will be accounted for
prospectively as changes in accounting estimates.
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 22, net
of cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments
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(a) EMITAZER

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$' 000
THERT FET
Financial assets M EE
Derivative financial instruments NEARBEEEZITAE
classified as held for trading E@MITE 1,173 1,489
Loans and receivables (including B X N E W ZKIA
cash and cash equivalents) (BREASEREEE) 459,899 464,375
461,072 465,864
Financial liabilities HEEE
Derivative financial instruments PEABEREZNAE
classified as held for trading @ THE 222 1,186
Amortised cost B R 826,212 883,942
826,434 885,128
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’'s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, bank balances and cash,
derivative financial instruments, trade, bills and other
payables and unsecured bank borrowings. Details of
the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (foreign currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The directors of the Company manage
and monitor these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

(i)  Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets
and monetary liabilities

A significant portion of the Group’s sales is
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") and HKD and
significant portion of the Group's purchases is
denominated in RMB and United States dollars
("USD"). The Group's manufacturing operations
are located in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC").

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. Certain bank
balances, trade receivables, trade, bills and
other payables and unsecured bank borrowings
are denominated in the foreign currencies of
the relevant group entities. The directors of the
Company monitor foreign exchange exposure
and manage it by entering into certain foreign
exchange structured forward contracts as set
out in note 19.
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6.

NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

(i)

Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets
and monetary liabilities (continued)

At the reporting date, the carrying amounts
of the Group’'s monetary assets and monetary

e MR R MR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013

B —F—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

6. ERMIH(E)

(b) B EMEEBFERBER (2Z)

mEEE ()

SMEEB (B

(i)

FITEINEEREEREK ARG (F

RBER FAEENEFHEEERS
BWREEEUIINZEBINENEE SR

liabilities denominated in currencies other than ERESaEZEEENT :
the respective functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE 8E
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FERT FET FERT FAT
RMB AR 2,313 3,123 454 266
HKD BT 10,149 13,194 126,478 151,371
UsSD ETT 5,399 2,972 29,993 90,132
Macao Patacas (“MOP") BP9 451 486 - =
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis I B REE 5 T

The following table details the Group's
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease
in the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities against the relevant foreign
currencies. Sensitivity rate of 5% represents the
assessment of the directors of the Company
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the foreign currency exposure
in relation to the HKD and USD exchange rate
fluctuation is not significant as HKD is pegged
to USD. For this reason, the sensitivity analysis
below does not reflect this.

TRAJNASEHEREEER 2
RREBEEBINE T EREZES%Z &)
RE - BREAEED R AR A EEHEEK
Aae s s A MG  HBREDNME
BREMIMNESHEZHARFREERER
VWRERFEELBMARRER 25%
HE) ARRIEERR - ARETERE
T FEETRETERRSZ
SNERRIRFE - Bt T - TXZ
FREDNT L ERRUER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
BE—F=—F+-_A=1—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EWMIAHE)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIXEREEEEREE (&)
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued) S EEE (&)
Foreign currency risk (continued) SN S (42 )
() Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets () FETHEINEEMEEREKGE (&)
and monetary liabilities (continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (continued) S HE G R T (4E)
The sensitivity analysis below shows the impact TXZHEBREPTBTIUAARE B
relating to monetary assets or liabilities that are TERMEBHECEKEEXBED
denominated in RMB, HKD or MOP against the MAEEEEERENEREEETIA
functional currencies of relevant group entities, Rz 2o
HKD or RMB respectively.
In relation to monetary assets, where the REBEEmMES  WHBEEERZ
functional currency of the relevant group entity M EEREEMEMTECEEH
strengthens 5% against the currency in which B5%  BIFEF B - Am -
the assets are denominated, there would be nEKaENES WHEBSEZEZ
a decrease in profit for the year. However, M EBRBEMEATEZESE
in relation to monetary liabilities, where the B5% - AIFEE R A& -
functional currency of the relevant group entity
strengthens 5% against the currency in which
the liabilities are denominated, there would be
an increase in profit for the year.
A 5% weakening of the functional currency e EEIEIY AFEFBHeXE
would have an equal but opposite impact on the HEHFEEERZZE -
profit for the year.
RMB Impact HKD Impact MOP Impact
ARBZEE BTZEE BE¥ e
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HKS$ 000
FER FET FET FAT FERT FAT
(Decrease) FE O )
increase 30
in profit (93) (143) 5,816 6,909 (23) (24)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of
the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

)

&
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Foreign exchange structured forward contracts

During the year, the Group has entered into
several foreign exchange structured forward
contracts with banks, details are disclosed in
note 19. These derivatives are not accounted for
under hedge accounting. The Group’s foreign
exchange structured forward contracts exposed
the Group to foreign currency risk.

The directors of the Company consider that the
exposure of HKD against USD is limited as HKD
is pegged to USD.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to the
Group's forward exchange rate risk for contracts
of RMB against USD at the reporting date.

If the forward exchange rate of RMB against
USD had been 5% higher/lower while all other
input variables of the valuation models were
held constant, the Group's profit for the year
would increase by HK$30,000/HK$34,000
(2012: decrease/increase by HK$12,933,000/
HK$282,000).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the above sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year. Details of the terms of the
leveraged foreign exchange forward contracts
are set out in note 19.

e MR R MR
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6. ERMIH(E)

(b) B EMEEBFERBER (2Z)

mEEE ()

SMEEB (B

(ii)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings (see note
22 for details of these borrowings), bank balances
and deposits. The directors consider that the interest
rate risk on bank balances and deposits are minimal,
accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is performed.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk section of
this note. The Group cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR"), London Interbank
Offered Rate (“"LIBOR"), prevailing interest rates
offered by the People’'s Bank of China (“PBOC")
and prime rate arising from the Group's borrowings
denominated in HKD and RMB.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivatives
instruments. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
Increase or decrease in a 50 basis point represents
the assessment of the directors of the Company of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates. For
the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate bank borrowings, if interest rates had been 50
basis points higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the
year ended 31st December, 2013 would decrease/
increase by HK$3,228,000 (2012: HK$3,313,000).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the interest
rate risk as the year end exposure does not reflect
the exposure during the year.

~ HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &2&£®mZRERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
BE—F=—F+-_A=1—HIFE
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk

As at 31st December, 2013, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of
the Company have delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high
credit ratings, the Group does not have significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables consist
of a large number of customers, spreading across
diverse industries and geographical areas.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

E@MIRA(E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —FT—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. SWMIA(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEMREERERBEK (&)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) HEELRERE (&)
The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant REBEKBRTEEEAERHERZ T
source of liquidity. As at 31st December, 2013, BB - RN -_E—=F+-F=+—H 'K
the Group has available undrawn borrowing EBARERHEERE 4205,766,00078
facilities of approximately HK$205,766,000 (2012: L (ZZF— =% :202,421,000% 70) ° A&
HK$202,421,000). The Group monitors its current e rHeEinr HESg MNTERARHESTNK
and expected liquidity requirements regularly HMERHABREZZ2 AR S LMEERY
and ensuring sufficient liquid cash and adequate CERMEEESEM CAEERBEAER
committed lines of funding from reputable AREBZEHLRERESESE K -
financial institutions to meet the Group’s liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.
The following table details the Group’s remaining TEREHNWAEFB KA E 2 TS 9T
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For HAMR - SLIELTHE IS REMS » ZKRJIIEAK
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has been SEAFEERNRORFHHANMEER
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows RAIFRBEREIT - FHIZ - M ATBER
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on EREERRZRITEE  THRR|TEST
which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, FERER M A SRR EREAR - E43E4T
bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause AU aE s BARERBRETERBEE -
are included in the earliest time band regardless of FHPBREMNERAGRESRE °
the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their
rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows.
Liquidity and interest risk tables TEB)E 2 K FI 2 B fe &
Weighted On
average demand or Total
effective  less than 13 3 months undiscounted  Carrying
interestrate  1month  month(s)] to1year 1-2years) 2-5years cashflows  amount
nE¥y  REXS  -@AE  =fAA ARRE
ERfIE  -EAR =fiA E-F -FERE MERIE  REAE RHE
% HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR  TEn TR TEn  TExr  TEx  TE:x
2013 ut Sk
Non-derivative financial FEnBaR
liabilities
Trade, bills and other payables 25 RERAMENTE - 180,592 - - - - 180592 180,592
Unsecured bank borrowings BERRAEE
- variable rate -i38 37 32,881 145,002 188,673 183,640 124,519 674,715 645,620
213473 145002 188,673 183,640 124519 855307 826,212

\

\
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6.

NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —F—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. SWMIA(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERMEEEEREE (£Z)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) HEBELRERE (&
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) HEE2 R FIE R R (&)
Weighted On
average  demand or Total
effective  less than 1-3 3 months undiscounted  Carrying
interestrate ~ Tmonth  monthls)  toTyear 1-2yearls) 2-5years cash flows amount
nEEy  BEk%  -REAZ =R AABRS
EEHE AR =fiR E-F -FEWE RERRE REEE G
%  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAL T Tin T TAL T TAL
2012 —E-CF
Non-derivative financial FAEHBEE
liabilities
Trade, bills and other payables 25 ZEREMERTE - 221339 = = = -39 221,339
Unsecured bank borrowings BEARNES
- variable rate -8 39 43,948 134,369 156,577 333,329 30888 699,111 662,603
265,287 134,369 156,577 333,329 30,888 920,450 883,942

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 month”
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at
31st December, 2013 and 31st December, 2012,
the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of
these bank loans amounted to HK$10,000,000 and
HK$30,685,000 respectively. Taking into account
the Group's financial position, the directors do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment.

For the purpose of managing liquidity risk, the
management reviews the expected cash flow
information of the Group's bank loans with a
repayment on demand clause based on the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the agreement
as set out in the table below:

BEABBEREERRCBRITEREHA Lit
BB POEERS—EARA]EHHE - R
—E—=F+ZA=+—RAkZZE—=F+=A
=+t—H ZERTEFNEIERNARSHLE
% Bl 10,000,000 7T % 30,685,000/% JT ° £ &
RASEHBARLE  EFHERTETSITE
He] 2RERER 2 IEER -

REERDESRAR  EEERETRMEHZR
NZBEEXBMHESAREEERERERRZ
AEBRTEFRNBA RS REBEFHETRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —FT—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. SWMIA(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERMEEEEREE (£Z)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) HEBELREE (&
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) HEE2 R FIE R R (&)
On demand Total
or less than 1-3 3 months undiscounted Carrying
1 month month(s) t0 1 year 1-2 year(s) 2-5 years cash flows amount
REXY, L =R KBRS
—fiAR =R E-F -EEWE @ERRE MEER BHE
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TAL Tin Tin T i TAL i
2013 “5-=f%
Bank borrowings with a repayment #75 FTREE k(A E
on demand clause BRz RS 10,012 - - - - 10,012 10,000
2012 Z¥-ZF
Bank horrowings with a repayment %A W BER ZR([EE
on demand clause BReBOEE 11,207 4,590 15,148 = - 30,945 30,685

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined

at the end of the reporting period.

(c) Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial

liabilities are determined as follows:

Foreign currency forward contracts are
measured using quoted forward exchange rates
and vyield curves derived from quoted interest
rates matching maturities of the contracts.

Interest rate swaps are measured using quoted
forward interest rates and vyield curves derived
from quoted interest rates matching maturities
of the contracts.

The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding those described
above) are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &%2&@iZiRERAHT
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value (continued)

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

Financial instruments that are measured subsequent
to initial recognition at fair value, based on the degree
to which the fair value is observable, were grouped
into Levels 1 to 3 as set out in the accounting policy
in note 3.

Derivative financial instruments are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped
into Level 2.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and
financial liabilities.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on
a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined
(in particular, the valuation technique and inputs
used).

e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
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6. ERMIH(E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
BE—F=—F+-_A=1—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c)

Fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on
a recurring basis (continued)

6. T@MITHE(ZE)

(c) BFEGE)

EMTAZ A FEE(F)

REBEUEET M EERDFEFTENYFK
BEERYFRENLFE(F)

Financial assets/ Fair value as Fair value Valuation technique
financial liabilities at 31/12/2013 hierarchy and key inputs
R=-B-—=%F
+t=A=+-—H
MBEE HMEARE WATE AFERE #HEETREZZ@HAHE
1)  Foreign currency forward Assets — Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future
contracts classified as HK$757,000; B cash flows are estimated based
derivative financial and Liabilities — on forward exchange rates
instruments in the HK$191,000 (from observable forward
consolidated statement BE— exchange rates at the end of
of financial position 757,000/ 7T the reporting period) and
RErB MBI AR D ER rkBE— contracted forward rates,
PTESB T A 2 IMNERE 191,000/ 7T discounted at a rate that
a8 reflects the credit risk of
various counterparties.
WERB R - RIBRAINEE
(RBEERTBERAERBINE
=) REFTH AR HILEL & 2R
fhEFARRB SR - WKA—E
RS HFEERRS
tEEAG 2R o
2) Interest rate swaps (with discrete Assets — Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future
knock-out options) classified as HK$416,000 E_H cash flows are estimated based
derivative financial instruments and Liabilities — on forward interest rates
in the consolidated statement HK$31,000 (from observable yield curves at
of financial position BE— the end of the reporting period)
RERB BRI TRDER 416,0005 7T and contracted interest rates,
PTESMEE MR kEE— discounted at a rate that
(P 38 7 8 R 2 S 2P 4 ) 31,000/ 7T reflects the credit risk of

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in
the period.

oyl
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
Revenue

Revenue represents the gross proceeds received and
receivable on the sale of goods during the year, net of
discounts and sales related tax.

Segment information

The Group's operations are organised based on the
differences in products. Information reported to the
executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM?"), for the purpose
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance is analysed based on the difference in
products. No operating segments identified by CODM
have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group's reportable and operating
segments are categorised into the manufacture and sale
of:

° Containerboard — corrugating medium and linerboard

° Corrugated packaging — corrugated paper boards and
carton boxes

Information regarding the above segments is reported
below.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating and reportable segment:

e MR R MR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013

B —FT—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WERDBER (&)
(continued)
Segment information (continued) DEER (Z)
Segment revenues and results DESY R EE
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 BE_T—=F+-_A=+—BIt&EE
Corrugated Segment
Containerboard Packaging total Eliminations Consolidated
BRE LEE% AEHAE H ge
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TER TER TEx TiEn TiER
REVENUE g
External sales HNEE 186,790 839,833 1,026,623 - 1,026,623
Inter-segment sales PHEEE 677,073 485 677,558 (677,558) -
Total @t 863,863 840,318 1,704,181 (677,558) 1,026,623
RESULT E3
Segment profit DA 20,291 10,201 30,492 - 30,492
Finance costs BB A (24,737)
Changes in fair value of derivative ~ $T£ ¢RI &
financial instruments NEEZED 4,329
Profit before taxation HATHE 10,084
For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BHE-ZT——F+-A=+—HLFE
Corrugated Segment
Containerboard Packaging total Eliminations Consolidated
R LFe% @ i &6
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
T THET T T T
REVENUE g
External sales HNEE 168,979 882,118 1,051,097 - 1,051,097
Inter-segment sales PEFEEE 713,374 2,794 716,168 (716,168) -
Total b 882,353 884,912 1,767,265 (716,168) 1,051,097
RESULT EY
Segment profit HEFE 12,255 21,547 33,802 = 33,802
Finance costs HBRA (25,412)
Changes in fair value of derivative {74 4RI A
financial instruments NTEZ2E 18,444
Profit before taxation B A8 26,834

-
s 3
E
=
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Segment information (continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies adopted in preparing the
reportable segment information are the same as the
Group's accounting policies described in note 3.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each
segment without allocation of finance costs and changes
in fair value of derivative financial instruments. This is
the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of

resources allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market
rates.

No revenue from any single customer during the year
contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group
for both years.

Other segment information

For the year ended 31st December, 2013

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit:

7.

e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —F—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

iR D EBER (&)

DEWER(F)

e ES $C V)
REAZ|MOFERERA 2G5 BOR RS
Pr#c NEEEEFEBRMER e

DEAERKRZ D BHAMERZAE - BERD B
BERARTESRIARFEZEY - WTHRS
REREFERAMERGTIELERREZT
7y

DESEEE N2 RIRITMEE -

PREFER  WETANE-—FFRFRZKE
BERBBAANEBRRZETEI0% °

Efh 7 & #
BHE-_Z—=+-_A=+—BLtEE

AENEHMNERERE SR

Corrugated

Containerboard Packaging Total

FE MR AK RiEE%# BEr

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FET FTERT FERT

Interest income A 2 WA 2,593 975 3,568
Release of prepaid lease BB+ AR

payments on land use rights AR HEENRIA 363 261 624

Depreciation e 59,655 19,537 79,192
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —FT—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE
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i
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Segment information (continued)
Other segment information (continued)
For the year ended 31st December, 2012

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit:

7. WERDEEFR

okk

DEWER(F)

A7 HBEH (&)

(42 )
\ng /

BE-_Z——#+-_A=1+—BIFE

AENHMNERERE SR

Corrugated
Containerboard Packaging Total
e R 4R i a2 @t
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FHET FH&T FAT
Interest income B WA 2,002 922 2,924
Release of prepaid lease B [ £ Hb {5 4
payments on land use rights A ERIE 355 261 616
Depreciation e 55,408 21,179 76,587
Geographical information HEEHF
The following table sets out information about (i) the TRV EBOANEEBRERINEBEHNHE D 2
Group’s revenue from external customers by location of IR BEERERINVAEBIREEMEMEE D 2
delivery destination of the goods and (ii) the Group's non- ERBEEER
current assets by location of assets:
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
SHREF W IRBEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHET FET FET FAT
PRC i 1,026,623 1,051,097 1,448,530 1,416,749
Others Hb - - 4,320 4,882
1,026,623 1,051,097 1,452,850 1,421,631
Segment assets and liabilities SHEEREE

The measure of the segment reporting of the Group
reported to the CODM for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment does not include
any assets and liabilities. Accordingly, no segment assets
and liabilities are presented.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &%2&@iZiRERAHT
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10.

NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —F—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

OTHER INCOME Hbug A
2013 2012
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FERT FHET
Other income includes: Hi i A8 E :
Exchange gain, net P& 3 s E 588 =
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME  BERZE
and equipment 2 Wa - 109
Interest income from bank balances RITHESHHA B BA 3,568 2,924
Scrap sales FEmiEE 580 287
Service income AR M A 6,881 7,531
Sundry income HMIFUW A 1,049 705
12,666 11,556
FINANCE COSTS B %5 R A
2013 2012
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET
Interest on bank borrowings wholly HARAFREMN ZRITE
repayable within five years B2 HE 24,737 25,412
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FTSHMAX
2013 2012
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET
Current tax: BNEARL IR :
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFEH 854 870
PRC Enterprise Income Tax REI SR 972 2,150
1,826 3,020
Deferred tax (note 24) RIERIE (M 524) 2,360 3,225
4,186 6,245

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

A portion of the Group's profits are earned by the Macau
subsidiaries of the Group incorporated under the Macau
SAR’s Offshore Law. Pursuant to the Macau SAR's
Offshore Law, such portion of profits are exempted from
Macau complementary tax, which is currently at 12%
of the profits. Further, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, that portion of the Group's profit is not
at present subject to taxation in any other jurisdiction in
which the Group operates.

EATBRIEMEAFEMHTERHANBEZ
16.5%=H & -

REBE D MBI AR BRERPISFITTHER
B AR MR SL 2 R PT B B 22 B P AR R © 1R 1B
RFIRFRITTER R BE AR - E D MR B AR M
WP (B AR AE Z12%80) < ttoh - &
REEERR  BAIAKEZIYFBEITEER
REEE B 2 T E M RDERER RBUATIA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
BE—F=—F+-_A=1—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FREFHBEX (&)

Under the law of the People's Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law"”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1st January, 2008
onwards.

A PRC subsidiary which is exempted from PRC EIT for
two years starting from the first profit-making year,
followed by a 50% reduction for the next three years
pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
was subject to PRC EIT rate of 12.5% for the years ended
31st December, 2012.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

REBEFEARKMBERMAEIOE([REMRER
EDREEMEPAEBRGS B —FFN\F—
A—BE HERBRRAZHER25% °

BEFBRGREERRRG  AEBEBET—HH R
MEBAR BB EEMNFERITMFERRHFP
BOEMBEHR HEZFERP50%F B %R
"R -BE—T——FF+_A=FT—RHILFE"
ZHMBARARPRCEMBSHEI25% MM
18 o

FERBAXHEGABRR MEME2EKERAR
BATHE 2 SRR T

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHERT FH&T
Profit before taxation 4 5 7 10,084 26,834
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BEBFEHEI165% (T ——4F :
of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) 16.5%) st E 2 Hi1A 1,664 4,428
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBIMA 2 G E
for tax purpose (2,289) (2,657)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A HIFEB = 2 RIS T &
for tax purpose 2,424 2,704
Utilisation of tax losses previously FREMAER ZHIEESRE
not recognised - (806)
Effect of tax different tax rate of FEMBARMREINR 22
PRC subsidiaries 1,647 1,962
Effect of tax exemption granted to BB AR ERERIB L&
Macau subsidiaries (371) (676)
Tax effect of undistributed earnings REEBARIRDIREFZ
of PRC subsidiaries (note 24) s 2 (fsE24) 833 866
Others Hh 278 424
Tax charge for the year FEBEZH 4,186 6,245

N
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —F—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR, ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

M. XQFER AEBAEFERE

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHERT FHET
Profit for the year, attributable to RNARER ARBLFEFE
owners of the Company, has RT3 &IE
been arrived at after charging:
Auditor's remuneration 1% B AT B & 1,600 1,600
Allowance for inventories GFEREE GTATHERSN] R
(included in “cost of sales” [ERARIZ 2 FERAE])
and “cost of inventories
recognised as expenses”) 145 151
Cost of inventories recognised BRAEASZZTFERAN
as expenses 853,037 880,542
Depreciation of property, M - WEREE
plant and equipment &
- Included in “cost of sales” — T ATSHER ] 72,675 69,872
— Included in “other expenses” — T ATE MR ] 6,517 6,715
79,192 76,587
Release of prepaid lease payments et RERMEENRER
on land use rights 624 616
Exchange losses, net [ENEE - F58 - 243
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEIKEEIE
plant and equipment 712 -
(Reversal of) impairment losses on BESRWHREZ CREEERD)
trade receivables AR GEATHEMRR])
(included in “other expenses”) (804) 185
Operating lease rental for warehouse EBERBAEZLEHERS
and office premises 511 498
Staff costs BTITAAK
Directors’ emoluments (note 12) BE=me (M:E12) 9,784 7,065
Other staff HEMET
— salaries and other allowances — ¥ & R H M ERL 72,180 64,172
- retirement benefit scheme — iR RREFIFT S K
contributions 4,959 4,426
— share-based payments —ABRMDIFzEH 195 80
87,118 75,743
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —FT—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 12. EERFETBRAEMERESHF N
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS
Directors EE

Other emoluments

HitM &
Retirement

Salaries benefit Share-
and other scheme based 2013
Fees benefits Bonus contributions payments Total

Fek RIKEA N3
e HibEA A FEMR  XfAzxd Hewm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
TR TR THER TR TR TR
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok FRE K E - 2,293 - 15 571 2,879
Mr. Hui Sum Ping FHRERE - 2,293 - 15 571 2,879
Mr. Hui Sum Tai TRREE - 2,020 - 15 571 2,606
Ms. Hui Yuen Li FEmF L - 715 - 15 90 820
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric  BR4ERE 140 - - - 60 200
Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan ERHEE 140 - - - 60 200
Mr. Wong Chu Leung BHRTE 140 - - - 60 200
420 7,321 - 60 1,983 9,784

Other emoluments

Hiie
Retirement
Salaries benefit Share-
and other scheme based 2012
Fees benefits Bonus  contributions payments Total
Hek RIKET PARR 5
e it & T4 SRS XFZx Wewm

HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TEL TET TEL TET TET TET

Mr. Hui Sum Kwok HRELE = 2,004 = 14 35 2,053
Mr. Hui Sum Ping FRFEE = 2,004 = 14 39 2,057
Mr. Hui Sum Tai THRRELE - 1,763 - 14 39 1,816
Ms. Hui Yuen Li AR L - 706 - 14 9 729
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric R4 %4 136 = = = 1 137
Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan Ee b 136 = = = = 136
Mr. Wong Chu Leung BRRLE 136 = = = 1 137

408 6,477 - 56 124 7,065

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &%2&@iZiRERAHT



NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors (continued)

Mr. Hui Sum Tai is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to these directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office and no
director had waived any emoluments.

Employees

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2012: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments
of the remaining individual for the year ended 31st
December, 2013 amounted to HK$883,000, representing
salaries and other benefits of HK$500,000, bonus of
HK$379,000 and retirement benefits scheme contributions
of HK$4,000, for his/her service rendered to the Group.

Bonuses to directors and employees were determined
based on the financial performance of the Group for the
years ended 31st December, 2013 and 31st December,
2012.

. DIVIDENDS

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the two years ended 31st December, 2013
and 31st December, 2012.

e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —F—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

1.EERFTETHRAEHNES K ES H M

B (#)

ARBEENRBARBEIETHAER - R EXF
REZHEeCRREBEEIZTHRABRERY
PREBEZME -

FRAKERESNEAMSTHEESER
BEEMASESEMAREEZ BB HER/
HEtRmES  TREEFTHEREAME -

=]

AEBRAUESTMALHF Hbp@mfi (==
——F M) BARREBESZ  BEZHFHER
tx#EY - BE-E—=F+-"A=+—HItE
E #T—ALZB8E /8830005 T B
RERASEREREES 2H < R EtiEF
500,000/ 7T + {f£41379,000/% jT M iR K& F 51 &
34,0008 7T o

EEREEBZIANZEREE-_E—=F+=A
=—t+t—HEZZE——F+_A=Z+—HLEFER
SEZHMBEREEE -

RE

EEfgERErNBE—_S—=¢+-_/A=+—H
R+ _A=+—BUIMEFEZX
HARE 8. ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —FT—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

14.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on

the following data:

BEREF

RRABHEBANCBESREAREERNTIRAT
BURFTE

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHERT FHET
Earnings 2
Earnings for the purposes of basic AEERERNREERZN 2 AR
and diluted earnings per share 5,898 20,589
2013 2012
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of AEERERRFZ
ordinary shares for the purpose 5 AR b 19 E
of basic earnings per share 724,386,000 618,103,136
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary HERESR O ETEE
shares in respect of share options TEkRk w2 172,406 -
Weighted average number of AEEREERT 2
ordinary shares for the purpose of LA IR T E
diluted earnings per share 724,558,406 618,103,136

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic earnings per share for the year ended
31st December, 2012 has been adjusted for the bonus
element of the rights issue completed on 10th July, 2012.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the
year ended 31st December, 2012 does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options as
the exercise price of those options was higher than the
average market price for the year.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &%2&@iZiRERAHT
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —F—=F+=-FA=1—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ - BERRXRHE
Furniture, Plant,
Factory Leasehold fixtures machinery
premises land and Leasehold and office and Motor  Construction
in the PRC buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles i progress Total
HELH HENE  BH%E BEBE
HERE i £ $6  RELERA kR it} FRIR &t

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000
Thn TR ThR TR TR TR Thn TR

CoST A

At 1st January, 2012 “5-2%-H-H 494,549 4,588 45,291 14,796 1,194,867 11,640 - 1,765,731
Exchange adjustments  [E X 5% 10,19 36 573 163 23142 % = 34,198
Additions BN - - 1,750 1,098 54,480 1,405 35,467 94,200
Disposals & = = (19 (42) (73) (726) = (860)
At 31st December, 2012 ZE-Z#+-f=1-R 504,745 4,624 47595 16,006 1,272,416 12417 3,467 1,893,269
Echange adusiments B3 5% 8854 31 530 152 21,146 108 678 31,499
Additions R = - 2,266 452 18,756 114 64,772 86,360
Transfer g - - - - 66,161 - (66,161) -
Disposals ih & - - - - (1,657) (291) - 1,948)
At 31st December, 2013 ZE-=FF+-A=1-H 513,599 4,655 50,391 16,609 1,376,822 12,348 34,756 2,009,180
DEPRECIATION b

At 1st January, 2012 “5-2%-H-H 93,587 1,235 37,586 8,482 263,106 8,835 - 412,831
Exchange adjustments  [E 3 5% 1833 9 4p1 65 3423 80 = 5,861
Provided for the year EREE 19,986 184 3129 1,294 50,948 1,046 S 76,567
Eliminated on disposals &R - - 9) 39) (60) (317) - (425)
At 31st December, 2012 ZE-Z#+Zf=1-R 115,406 1,428 41,157 9,802 37417 9,644 - 494 854
Exchange adjustments ~ EFEE 1914 9 439 70 3765 79 = 6,276
Povded for e year BB 20401 185 3051 1,291 53,33 98 - 79,192
Eliminated on disposals &R H - - - - (819) (286 - (1,108)
At31st December, 2013 —F-=£+-A=+-8 13772 1,622 44,647 11,163 373,699 10,365 - 579,217
CARRYING VALUES EEE

At 31st December, 2013 ZE-ZE+-A=1-H 375,878 3,033 5,744 5,446 1,003,123 1,983 34,756 1,429,963
At 31st December, 2012 ZE-Z#+Zf=1-R 389,339 3,196 6,438 6,203 954,999 2,173 3,467 1,398.415
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —FT—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIP

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and
than construction in progress, are d

MENT

equipment, other
epreciated on a

straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Factory premises in the PRC

4% or remaining lease term of

the land element, if shorter

Leasehold land and buildings

4% or remaining lease term of

the land element, if shorter

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment

Motor vehicles

20%
10%
31/,% - 33'/%
20%

15. Y13 - BERRE (&)

EdmE - BERREEE (EEIREIN KE
BORIRA T FRITE

e 4% T35z 8 T AR
(ABEEARE)
RELHRET 4%k T35 2 T H
(AT E A%E)
HEMERE 20%
Gl RERBRAERE 10%

BB HERERR 3',% - 33'/,%

P 20%
2013 2012

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FH T FHET

The carrying amount of the Group's
leasehold land and buildings
shown above comprises:

Situated in Hong Kong under
medium-term lease

Situated in Macau under
medium-term lease

ERIRZAEEBRE L

MEFZRMER

2 7 & 78 3 12 B8 B
GEROES )

32 708 P 3 322 AR o B
GiROESEC)

The carrying amount of the above-mentioned factory
premises in the PRC does not include any land element
which is presented as “prepaid lease payments on land
use rights"” separately.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &%2&@iZiRERAHT
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —F—=F+=-FA=1—HIFE

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE 16. T EAEFANAERIA
RIGHTS

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHERT FHET
The Group's prepaid lease payments N5 [& 1 1 A& B (S
on land use rights comprise: HEFIEBLRE :
Land use rights in the PRC IR B 7 £t {48
Medium-term lease HRHEAFE 4 23,514 23,837
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEHMIEDN :
Non-current asset ERBEE 22,887 23,216
Current asset mEEE 627 621
23,514 23,837
Included in the Group's prepaid lease payments on AEBz I HFREBRNEEREFR R
land use rights is HK$1,750,000 (2012: HK$1,811,000) 1,750,000/ 7t (=T — =4 : 1,811,000 7T) Z
prepayments under processing arrangement which MIZHBEMNF AL ERECERET 28
represent the prepaid amount under an operating lease for t&%a -
land use rights.
17. INVENTORIES 17. &
2013 2012
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FERT FHET
Raw materials R # 79,812 119,253
Work in progress R 464 1,082
Finished goods R Gh 22,020 23,302
102,296 143,637
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. B R EMEKEIE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET
Trade receivables B 5 WA 202,222 160,456
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREAE (496) (1,276)
201,726 159,180
Other receivables (note) H 4t i W FRTE (Y E) 18,406 16,036
Total trade and other receivables B 5 I H fth JE U FUIE B 58 220,132 175,216
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
BE—F=—F+-_A=1—HIFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

18. EZ R HMEWRIER(F)

(continued)

Note: During the year ended 31st December, 2011, the Group
received a notification from the PRC local government
for the return of a piece of land for its redevelopment
purposes. The Group paid RMB12,000,000 in prior years to
acquire that piece of land and the amount was previously
included in the “prepaid lease payments on land use
rights”. The Group did not receive the formal legal title
of that piece of land and the carrying amount of that
piece of land as at 31st December, 2011 amounted to
HK$14,670,000. Upon receipt of the notification, the Group
reclassified the amount of HK$14,670,000 from “prepaid
lease payments on land use rights” to “other receivables”.

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, the Higher
People’s Court of Guangdong Province ordered the PRC
local government to compensate the Group for an amount
of RMB12,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,000,000) and the
related interests.

On 21st March, 2014, an agreement (the “Agreement”)
was entered into between a subsidiary of the Company
and the PRC local government that the latter would
repay the amount to the Group within 30 business days
after the date of Agreement. Accordingly, the amount of
RMB12,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,000,000) is classified
as current asset.

The Group allows credit periods ranging from 5 to 150
days to its trade customers which may be extended to
selected trade customers depending on their trade volume
and history of settlement with the Group. The following is
an aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for
doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period:

Me: BE_Z——F+-_A=+—BHILFE K&
EEEFRFBRF 2B RE—BLET
WARBEREEMAER AEERBAFE
B X AR12,000,0007CEAZELM - A
FERBENAT L EREEMEERE]RA -
RNREBMYEHMESZB L2 ERATERE B
—E——f+-A=+—H8 %ELHZEE
8/314,670,000/% 7T ° 78 £ B 7 WOEGE AN 1% B %
A RAR™E(E14,670,000/8 7T /@ [ b (F FA#ETE S
MEREIESFHOBEATEMEKFKIE] -

BE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BHLFE EX
HAERARZRBESTFHE A RFARAEE
% 8 A K #12,000,0007T (8% $15,000,000/%
7o) RABEE A B -

R-E—WNF=ZA-+—H ARQRRET—MH
B8 A R EE AR Bt 5 BRI R S ek ([5Z Mg l) ©
RIEZ W P B A BFER &% B 8E
AL EBRNRAARNEBMENRE - AL ZE
A R #12,000,0007T (#8 %5 $15,000,0007% 7T)
ZHBCDEARBEE -

AEEGETESEFSEI0EEEH - Bl AR
BREESEFEAEE ZEZHERBENKE
B TAERZEESR - THARBERRER
HERHMBRRERERMES) 28 5 B KA
Z AR DA

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$' 000

FHET FHEIT

Within 30 days 308K 189,018 147,878
31 - 60 days 31E60H 10,010 6,411
61 — 90 days 61Z=90H 909 1,991
Over 90 days HBiE90H 1,789 2,900
201,726 159,180

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses
an external litigation search to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits on a
customer-by-customer basis. Limits and scoring attributed
to customers are reviewed monthly. Trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired relate to customers
for whom there was no recent history of default.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &%2&@iZiRERAHT
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance
are debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$51,281,000 (2012: HK$40,764,000) which were past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. Such amount relates to a
number of independent customers that have good trade
and payment records with the Group. There has not
been a significant change in credit quality of the relevant
customers and the Group believes that the balances are
still recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances. The average age of these receivables
is 64 days (2012: 57 days) based on invoice dates.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due
but not impaired

M BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —F—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

18. E5 R H i FE W FIE (&)

AEBESRRFBESTREERELE
/51,281,000 T2 EWHRIE (Z T —ZF :
40,764,000 70) - ZERBERWE B2 @84
A S BN MR E A BETRE ZERIEA
EAREBRFBRTEIRINFLEZZEBIER
FEB ZERXPZ2EEEZIESEARE B
REBEEEHTRE A B o RSB &R Z
LREGEMFEATMAERR BREZRZAH &%
FEW B IR 2640 (Z S — -4 :57H) °

EEMERREZE S ERTIEZ KRR

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FET FH&T
Overdue by 1 - 30 days MmE1Z=30H 49,520 40,764
Overdue by 31 — 60 days B EI31E60H 1,761 =
51,281 40,764

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REREB BT
2013 2012
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET
Balance at beginning of the year FYEH 1,276 1,068
Exchange adjustments P& 53 & 24 23

(Reversal of) impairment losses SR RIE 2 B ER

recognised on trade receivables CREBERR) BEEIE (804) 185
Balance at end of the year FRERR 496 1,276

Impairment losses were recognised based on the
Group's historical experience, aged analysis and internal
assessment of the recoverability of the debt. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

BHEBBEDREANREHERZBELR R
DT R M [ & i) O BD AT A T RERR o AR B
M EFEGms A EAERm -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
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19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 19. fTE ST A
2013 2012
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =K BE afE
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000
FET TER FHET FHET

Foreign exchange forward — #MEERHIA L

contracts 757 191 1,489 1,186
Interest rate swaps FI =45 HA (P9 98 L
(with discrete N KA )
knock-out options) 416 31 - -
1,173 222 1,489 1,186
These foreign exchange forward contracts and interest EINERPBE N RN RIS (BB R LK%
rate swaps (with discrete knock-out options) are not HARE) W AR @ X ABRRIE o

accounted for under hedge accounting.

2013 2012
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THET FAT
Net cash inflow from settlement FRUTAESR T A
of derivative financial instruments EEZFERERA
during the year 3,681 5,437
The major terms of the outstanding foreign exchange iR BT Z INER A X R F K48 5 (BT 98 S A8
forward contracts and interest rate swaps (with discrete MKERE) 2 EBERMT ¢
knock-out options) are as follows:
(i) Foreign exchange forward contracts as at (i) R=ZEBE—=FE+-A=+—HZHEE
31st December, 2013 HEeEW
Total monthly Remaining total
notional amount notional amount  Contract rate Maturity
BRERHUSE BRTERALE BHER ENE
Buy US$2,000,000 (note (a)) US$4,000,000 HK$7.74/US$1 Within 1 year
& A2,000,0003% 7t (FitiE(a)) 4,000,000% 7T 77487 1ETT 15 R
Sell US$2,000,000 (note (b)) US$26,000,000 RMB6.40/US$1 to RMB6.528/US$1 Within 2 years
Z 112,000,000 7T (P % (b)) 26,000,000 7T AR¥6.40T,1ETEARK6628T,/1ETL 26FR
As at 31st December, 2013, the Group had R-ZEBE—=F+_-A=+—"8 KEBHEXRET
outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts that ZHNEERHENDEREARZATFEFEZE B
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting ERANZET  NEBEEERABAEATRETH
period. The Group has an obligation, in accordance ET BEEANTNEAEIF BT AR FEL
with the terms of the respective contracts, to buy or o

sell USD monthly until maturity. The instruments are

:

x\\\\\\}\\\\\

to be settled on a net basis.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &%2&@iZiRERAHT



NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Foreign exchange forward contracts as at
31st December, 2013 (continued)

Notes:

(@) Under the above foreign exchange forward contracts,
the Group will receive USD and deliver HKD at
stipulated contract rate on a monthly basis. At each
monthly settlement, the Group has to buy the agreed
notional amount of USD at the contract rate.

(b)  Under the above foreign exchange forward contracts,
the Group is a party that has an obligation to deliver
USD and receive RMB at a series of predetermined
prices, based on the price calculated with a pre-
specified formula. The Group will deliver USD and
receive RMB at stipulated contract rates on a monthly
basis. At each monthly settlement, when market RMB/
US$ exchange rate moves favourable to the Group (i.e.
spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is at or lower than the
contract rate), the Group's potential gain are limited
to the agreed amounts as stipulated in the foreign
exchange forward contracts. However, when market
RMB/US$ exchange rate moves unfavourable to the
Group (i.e. spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is higher than
the contract rate), the Group has to sell the agreed
notional amount of USD at the contract rate with RMB.

Interest rate swap (with discrete knock-out
options) as at 31 December, 2013

Notional amount at

e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
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19. fTEE®M I A (&)

(i) R=FB-—=F+-A=1+—-RHZHEE
/sﬂ /E\ 1\\"] ( é}é\?/‘/
B 5E

(@) RELAIIEEHEH AEBEBURES
HEXZABAZIREHETL REAK
B AKEERAVEXBEABTLES
BZELe

(b) REFELRINEEHELH AEERBEEE
—FRIRBEBAAKAZAABELEEEZE
B BHETRBEAAREZATNT - K&
BEEAZEANERZABHEITREAA
R -NERBER WARE ETh%
FEEF T A K E (BIEMARYE ETEEX
ERHEREHER) JIAEEZEBEK
BHUAMNEERSNMEEZEEERR/R -
AW HWARE ELHBEXTRAE
EE (NEPARE ETEEXSHNEHNE
) RAEEEUAARBERENVEETER
BERBSBRIET -

(i) R=F-—=F+=-A=+-BzAxH=
57 (B 180 2 8 % 5K 3% P )

each maturity date Maturity Swaps
REIHEZEREH & % B HA =1
USD8,000,000 28.03.2014 From HIBOR floating rate to HIBOR floating rate

8,000,000% 7T

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, the
Group entered into a 24-month USD/RMB interest
rate swap (with discrete knock-out feature). The
knock-out event shall occur if the calculation agent
determines that the Accumulated In-The-Money
fixing events are greater than or equal to the Target
Number.

with maximum interest rate of 0.6%
HAEBRITRERSZBNEEZEARITAZE
FEFEFEHZZ0.6%

REE-_ZT—=ZF+-_A=Z+—BLEE
N AEBEFE—H_THEEAETLIA
REF RS (AEBILBRRBEE)
BRABMEHETIRAERBRAEL R Z
FEREEHARAERBIZHERHTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —FT—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(iii) Foreign exchange forward contracts as at
31st December, 2012

Remaining total

19. fTEE®M T A (&)

(iii) A=ZB—=-F+=-A=1+—HZHNEE

e

Fay

Total monthly notional amount notional amount Contract rate Maturity

BERERETHE MRTERESHE EHER & v 5 HA

Buy US$2,000,000 (note (a)) US$2,000,000 HK$7.739/US$1 Within 1 year

B A2,000,000% 7T (Mt (a)) 2,000,000% 7 773987/ 1E T 15/

Buy US$2,000,000 (note (b)) US$28,000,000 HK$7.74/US$1 Within 2 years

B A2,000,0003 7t (it 7E (b)) 28,000,000% 7T 17487/ 1% 26/

Buy US$2,000,000 (note (c)) US$16,000,000 HK$7.738/US$1 Within 1 year

B A2,000,000% 7T (Kt 3E(c)) 16,000,000% 7T 77388/ 1ET 1ER

Sell US$2,000,000 (note(d)) US$10,000,000 RMB6.58/US$1 to RMB6.68/USS$1 Within 1 year

E 112,000,000% 7T (FfzE(d)) 10,000,000% 7 AR¥6.58T 1ETEARM6.68T/1XT 15K

Sell US$4,000,000 (note (e)) US$56,000,000 RMB5.65/US$1 to RMB6.45/US$1 Within 2 years

& 1114,000,000% 7t (Fik(e)) 56,000,000% 7T ARE5.657T/1EZTEARK6LT 1R 26R

Sell US$2,000,000 (note(f)) US$18,000,000 RMB6.5/US$1 Within 1 year

& H12,000,000% 7 (Kt () 18,000,000% 7T AE®6.5T,/ 13T 1ER

Sell US$1,000,000 (note (g)) US$21,000,000 RMB6.528/US$1 Within 2 years

& 11,000,000% 7t (FizE(g)) 21,000,000% 7T AR¥6.628TT /15T 2FR

Notes: B 5E -

(@) Under the above foreign exchange forward contract, (a) WREEMINERIER  XEBKURES
the Group will receive USD and deliver HKD at HERIZABAEZTINEE BT REAL
stipulated contract rate on a monthly basis. At each o B TTE T IR E R R R & E R
monthly settlement, when market HK$/US$ exchange (BNEBRBEL/ ETERENSISRANE
rate moves favourable to the Group (i.e. spot HK$/ ) AAEEZBERZAINERPED
US$ exchange rate is at or higher than the contract FiEE 2 TEEAR - KM WHExT =
rate), the Group's potential gain is limited to an agreed THISERTR A EER (NEHBE T, =
amount as stipulated in the foreign exchange forward TERERENER)  AIRNEEKET
contract. However, when market HK$/US$ exchange BAHNEXREARTERESBEZIET -
rate moves unfavourable to the Group (i.e. spot HK$/

US$ exchange rate is lower than the contract rate), the
Group has to buy the agreed notional amount of USD
at the contract rate with HKD.

(b)  Under the above foreign exchange forward contract, (b) MRELMINERBELD  AEEKUEES
the Group will receive USD and deliver HKD at NEXZABEAELRBELB T REALE
stipulated contract rate on a monthly basis. At each B AEESRAYVEREAEZTEES
monthly settlement, the Group has to buy the agreed BEI2ET
notional amount of USD at the contract rate.

(c)  Under the above foreign exchange forward contract, (o IRELMINERIELDN  AEEBURTESE

the Group will receive USD and deliver HKD at
stipulated contract rate on a monthly basis. At each
monthly settlement, when market HK$/US$ exchange
rate moves favourable to the Group (i.e. spot HK$/
US$ exchange rate is higher than the contract rate),
the Group's potential gains are limited to the agreed
amounts as stipulated in the foreign exchange forward
contract. However, when market HK$/US$ exchange
rate moves unfavourable to the Group (i.e. spot HK$/
US$ exchange rate is at or lower than the contract
rate), the Group has to buy the agreed notional amount
of USD at the contract rate with HKD.

~ HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &2&£®mZRERAR
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(iii) Foreign exchange forward contracts as at
31st December, 2012 (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d)

Under the above foreign exchange forward contracts,
the Group is a party that has an obligation to deliver
USD and receive RMB at a series of predetermined
prices, based on the price calculated with a pre-
specified formula. The Group will deliver USD and
receive RMB at stipulated contract rate on a monthly
basis. At each monthly settlement, when market RMB/
US$ exchange rate moves favourable to the Group (i.e.
spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is at or lower than the
contract rate), the Group has to sell the agreed notional
amount of USD at the contract rate. However, when
market RMB/US$ exchange rate moves unfavourable
to the Group (i.e. spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is
higher than the contract rate), the Group has to sell
2 times of the agreed notional amount of USD at the
contract rate with RMB.

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, the
Group entered into a 24-month target redemption
forward contract with knock-out feature. The knockout
event shall occur if the calculation agent determine
that the market RMB/US$ exchange rate fall within a
range as stipulated in the foreign forward exchange
contract for twelve times, the remaining contract shall
terminate and be deemed cancelled.

Under the above foreign exchange forward contract,
the Group is a party that has an obligation to deliver
USD and receive RMB at a series of predetermined
prices, based on the price calculated with a pre-
specified formula. The Group will deliver USD and
receive RMB at stipulated contract rate on a monthly
basis. At each monthly settlement, when market RMB/
US$ exchange rate moves favourable to the Group (i.e.
spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is at or lower than the
contract rate), the Group has to sell the agreed notional
amount of USD at the contract rate. However, when
market RMB/US$ exchange rate moves unfavourable
to the Group (i.e. spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is
higher than the contract rate), the Group has to sell
2 times of the agreed notional amount of USD at the
contract rate with RMB.

e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
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19. fTEE®M T A (&)

(iii) R=F-—-F+-A=1T—-HZHEE
ek (&)

MieE (&)

d RELAIIEERHGH RAEBREAEMER
—FIRBEREEAZAXBLAEEZE
B BHELIREAARBZITNG - A%
BB EANEXZABEEIREAA
RE -REALER MAREK ETHB
ERMFAEE(NEPARE FTEX
ERFENREGHER)  AIXEESEEH
EXEHRTERESRZET - A WA
R/ ETHIGERIMAEBR (EH
AR/ ETEESRANESR)  BIAE
BEgUARBRZANEXEFELE TR
SHIET

() MEE=ZTE—=ZF+=-_A=+—HLEE
N AEBECFE—H-_+MEAARFEE
AERERBAAN(EEBERAIFES) - 5
RABEHDIRFAERBRAEARE ET
TISEREBI12X TR EINERP A DATH
EZHEREE  BRTEABERIERER
BECH °

Rig FMINERBAL  ARBEAERER
—RIREBEEEAZAABLEEEZE
B BHETRBEAARBEZAOT - KK
BRAZEAOERZATBHETIREAA
RE -REALER MARYK ETmH
ExFIFAEE(NENARE ELEX
ERFERAGNER)  AIXAEEGEEH
EXBEHBETRZSBE IR - Rl - WA
R/ ELmigEEIMNALER (M H
AR/ EZTEXSRENER) - BIXAE
HeAARBRANEXREFELHRTER
SRZETT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
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19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(iii) Foreign exchange forward contracts as at
31st December, 2012 (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(f)

Under the above foreign exchange forward contracts,
the Group is a party that has an obligation to deliver
USD and receive RMB at a series of predetermined
prices, based on the price calculated with a pre-
specified formula. The Group will deliver USD and
receive RMB at stipulated contract rates on a monthly
basis. At each monthly settlement, when market RMB/
US$ exchange rate moves favourable to the Group (i.e.
spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is at or lower than the
contract rate), the Group’s potential gains are limited
to the agreed amounts as stipulated in the foreign
exchange forward contracts. However, when market
RMB/US$ exchange rate moves unfavourable to the
Group (i.e. spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is higher than
the contract rate), the Group has to sell the agreed
notional amount of USD at the contract rate with RMB.

Under the above foreign exchange forward contract,
the Group is a party that has an obligation to deliver
USD and receive RMB at a series of predetermined
prices, based on the price calculated with a pre-
specified formula. The Group will deliver USD and
receive RMB at stipulated contract rates on a monthly
basis. At each monthly settlement, when market RMB/
US$ exchange rate moves favourable to the Group
(i.,e. spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is lower than the
contract rate), the Group’s potential gains are limited
to the agreed amounts as stipulated in the foreign
exchange forward contract. However, when market
RMB/US$ exchange rate moves unfavourable to the
Group (i.e. spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is at or
higher than the contract rate), the Group has to sell
the agreed notional amount of USD at the contract rate
with RMB.

20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and bank balances at prevailing market rates from 0.001%
10 4.125% (2012: 0.01% to 3.50%).

Included in the carrying amount of the Group's bank
balances, approximately HK$870,000 (2012: HK$665,000),
HK$5,167,000 (2012: HK$2,472,000), HK$4,580,000 (2012:
HK$3,227,000) and HK$451,000 (2012: HK$486,000)
denominated in RMB, USD, HKD and MOP respectively
are the currencies other than the functional currencies of
the relevant group entities.

~ HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &2&£®mZRERAR

19. fTEE®M T A (&)

(iii) R=B—=F+=-_H=+—HZHNEE
HEn (&)
MisE : (42)

(f RELAIIEERHEH RAEBREAEMER
—FRIRBEREEAZAXBLAEEZE
B BHELIREAARBZITNOG - &%
BEABEANEXZABEEIREAA
RE -REALER MAREK EITHB
ERMFAEE(NEPARE FTEX
SRFENREGHEX) » AIAEEZBER
BANEERENMEE LR ELERR -
AW - WMARK,/ ELWmSEXTHAE
B (NEPARE ETERSRALNE
) AIAEEHUAARBZRANERTT H
BETHRBELBEZIET

(9 MRELAMSERMELH AEBRBFETR
—RIRBEREEAZARNALEBEEZE
B BHETRBEAARKZATNT - K&
BEABEANERZABHEIREAA
RE -RNEBALEE MARYK ETH5
FEEFF AR E (BNE AR ETEEX
BERBHER) - A ARKEZ BT R A
EEMANMEEZERESRAM - AW -
it N R W /55 7T 7 455 B o 1 F| < % @ A (BD
BHARYE, ETEXZERIERANE
K) AIAEEBUARBRANERE L
BEBRSBEIET e

20. RITHEBREERESE

RITHEBLBESEEAEEFSAZRE RIBRT
WG M E N F0.001%E4.125% (=T — — 4 :
0.01%%E3.50%) ZRIT4 &R -

AEBENEBEEER 2 NEERUINZEE
AR -FEL - BT RBFIENEZRTES
ZEREED B4 A870,0008 T (=T — —F:
665,000/8 7T) ~ 5,167,000/ L (—Z T — =
2,472,000/ 7T) 4,580,000 T (=T — =
3,227,000/ 7T) K451,0008 T (=& — — & -
486,000/ 7T) °
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21. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. E5 - RERHEMENSRIE
The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills THRRBERRERBZRAMEINZES R
payables presented based on the invoice date at the end EREMNRBEZRE DN

of the reporting period:

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$" 000
FHET FET
Current BN HA 77,279 129,371
Overdue 1 to 30 days #mE1Z=30H 1,830 12,705
Overdue 31 to 60 days # H331260H 4,720 1,312
Overdue for more than 60 days #HI60H A + 2,434 2,269
86,263 145,657
Payables for the acquisition of BEME  WEREE
property, plant and equipment 2 FEH IR 13,289 7,148
Other payables and accrued charges EAb B RIB R FERT 81,040 68,534
180,592 221,339
The average credit period on purchases of goods is BEEY 2 FEFHEER A (ZZE——4F:60
61 days (2012: 60 days). The Group has financial risk B) AEBFAVSEBRERIE  LAERA
management policies in place to ensure that all payables EENZRBBHEEZEHRANSE -
are within the credit time frame.
22. UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS 22 BIEHRTEE
Unsecured bank borrowings comprise: EEBRTEERR
2013 2012
Effective interest rate HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
BRFIE THERT FHET
Bank loans RITER 1.466%-7.638% 461,310 510,024
(2012: 0.751%-7.761%)
Other bank borrowings HRITEE 1.661%-2.676% 176,918 150,778
(2012: 1.667 %-2.568%)
Trust receipt loans SRR E R 1.559%-2.460% 7,392 1,801
(2012: 1.667%-2.568%)
645,620 662,603

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 FE#%
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22. UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS

22. BERBTEE (&)

(continued)
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHET FET
Carrying amount repayable*: JEERAREE™
Within one year —F A 338,195 282,364
More than one year, but not —FUAELENBBRF
exceeding two years 174,111 319,091
More than two years, but not MFAEETBRASF
exceeding five years 123,314 30,463
635,620 631,918
Carrying amount of bank loans BEAEREREZKRR
that contain a repayment ZRITERZERE
on demand clause
— repayable within one year —-R—FANEE 10,000 30,685
645,620 662,603
Less: Amount due within one year B RREBEEYN R —FRN
shown under current liabilities & (348,195) (313,049)
Amounts due after one year shown RIERBEEI Rz —F&
as non-current liabilities Eafpii i 297,425 349,554
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates * NE S B IIREHERER RS ETETERA
set out in the loan agreements. HIEEE o
As at 31st December, 2013 and 31st December, 2012, the RIE—=F+-_A=t—HAK=ZZE—=—F+=

¢

gy

unsecured bank borrowings carry interest at floating rates,
thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
The interest rates are linked to HIBOR, LIBOR, prevailing
interest rates offered by PBOC, plus a margin, and prime
minus a margin.

Included in the carrying amount of the Group's unsecured
bank borrowings, bank borrowings of approximately
HK$125,690,000 (2012: HK$149,870,000) are
denominated in HKD that are denominated in the currency
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entity.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &%2&@iZiRERAHT
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23. SHARE CAPITAL 23 B
Number of shares Share capital
P& A [N
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THER T
Ordinary shares of FREE0.10B T
HK$0.10 each 3l dien
Authorised: EERA
At the beginning and REN R FK
the end of the year 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEBEAIRERRA
At the beginning of RE
the year 724,386,000 482,924,000 72,439 48,292
Rights issue A% - 241,462,000 - 24,147
At the end of year RER 724,386,000 724,386,000 72,439 72,439

On 10th July, 2012, the Company completed the rights
issue by issuing 241,462,000 rights shares on the
basis of one rights share for every two existing shares,
at a subscription price of HK$0.18 per rights share
("Rights Issue”). The cash proceeds of approximately
HK$43,463,000, before shares issue expenses of
HK$1,404,000, are used as general working capital of
the Group. These shares rank pari passu with the then
existing shares in issue in all aspects.

RZE—Z—ZFttA+H XA EBEN
241,462,0000% R D A SEAX A% - R EAF
MR AR D AR —RERERD  RBEEAET
A& B AR A% 190188 T ([#EAR]) - TR IR S BFEL
43,463,000/ 7T (R 1 BR 2 17 A% 10 B 521,404,000
B DAEREERZ —REEES - ZERMD
RATBFEYEERESERITRNDZERSE

= e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
BE—F=—F+-_A=1—HIFE

24. DEFERRED TAXATION

25.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset. The followings are the
deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised by the Group
and movements thereon during the current and prior
reporting years:

24.

i 3 B TH

MEINGEWBRAKRMES BT REHIBEE
REBEREEE UTREAEEBRZELERIE
BEEBE)RRABREFERUNEIREFEZE
& :

Undistributed

Accelerated earnings
tax of PRC  Write-down

depreciation  subsidiaries of inventories Total

Y

mE DNAEZ
BIERE ROREF FERA st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TET TERr TER
At 1st January, 2012 R-ZE——-%—HF—H 25,459 5,707 (32) 31,134
Charge to profit or loss EEE Mk 2,359 866 = 3,225
At 31st December, 2012 R-_E——F+-A=+—H 27,818 6,573 (32) 34,359
Charge to profit or loss Bz MR 1,627 833 = 2,360
At 31st December, 2013 RZE—=%+=-A=+—H 29,345 7,406 (32) 36,719

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1st January, 2008 onwards.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company's share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 4th
September, 2003 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to selected participants for their
contribution to the Group. The Old Scheme expired on 3rd
September, 2013 and all options previously granted under
the Old Scheme have been lapsed.

The Company approved and adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) on 3rd June, 2013 for the
primary purpose of providing incentive or rewards to
selected participants for their contribution to the Group.

~ HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &2&£®mZRERAR

25.

REEFBECERBBOLE - BHHR TR F BB L
A -EEN\F-A-HERARRZAEmEIR
Z BB o

LR D X A3 2 X
BREXNR S BERERTE

RER-_ZZT=FAANARBIREER AR
FIERMZBREAE ((EFE D E2ENAY
AEEELHERMZET2EEFHRBHRE -
EMECER-_Z—=FNAA=HEm MER
BREFERLZAABRBEE K -

ARRER-F—=FXA=ZRARERRANE
Pt &l ([#718))  TEEMABEAKEEL
BERZEE2BEFLRBNEE -



NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

Under the New Scheme, the Board of directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including executive or non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors), of the Company,
its subsidiaries, or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which
any member of the Group holds any equity interest, to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the
Company may, from time to time, grant share options to
any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity, any customer of the Group
or any Invested Entity, and any consultants, advisers,
managers, officers or entities that provide research,
development or other technological support to the Group
or any Invested Entity.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the New
Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of the passing of
the ordinary resolution for adoption of the New Scheme.
The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
at any time under the New Scheme shall not exceed 30%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time.

The number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders in accordance with the New
Scheme. Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director
or any of their respective associates would result in the
shares in the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and with
a value (based on the closing price of the shares of the
Company at the offer date of each offer) in excess of
HK$5,000,000, such grant of options must be approved
in advance by the Company’s shareholders in accordance
with the New Scheme.

e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —F—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

25. IR X2 (&)

REXNRXZERESTE (E)

REHAE ARBDESEARAARA - HHE
RBIRARE B B A R R B E AR 2 ]
e ((MRERED ZEERER (BREHTE
FECFMITESHBUIFNTES) RHEBRE -
NRBARBBRD - B AARERIKEL
BERETENAARAEEZKE AR HEAMRE
BEREHEMIRE 2 EMHER ARERE
AR ERE2ERNES  URAAEBEREM
PR EMBRHETNR  FAEAEMRMIERS
ZEMEAA  BE - KB SEABREE-

RIEFT IR L 2 EREE 2 HITER T T 3T
RN AE - & ETFBEBRATE 2 EiER
FEEBBAEBARACEITRMNZ10% - BT
R EITERBEFF R L MATEZ 2B
REMY FEHRITRMD2EE  TSHBARQFTT
REEITRAZ30% °

REARRNAREBIEIFT BB LHE - mERE
ATREREZEBRESRZBRMHEE - REMA
+TZEAHE  ITFBAEARARRNTEAEEE
BITRMD 21% o (WM — B E ERFRIEZIEH
TEEHIMREESA2HEA TR DT AER
o SEHEARTRZALZAEBREETEMD
REERLAH(EEER) E+-2@AHHE B
LRETEITZADRRG & EEERRRE R
TRDHBEN%  BEE(REBERARARNRE
RE I EERER B 2 Iem BT E) #8i85,000,000
BT AR EZERLBREESE B
AR AR R AL ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —FT—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

25. IR X2 (&)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

An option may be exercised at any time during the period
to be determined and notified by the directors to the
grantee and in the absence of such determination, from
the date of acceptance of an offer of the grant of such
option to the earlier of the date on which such option
lapses and ten years from the date of offer of that option.
A consideration of HK$1 is payable upon acceptance of
the offer.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of
the Company, and will not be less than the higher of
the nominal value of the share; the closing price of the
Company's shares on the date of offer; and the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer.

The following table discloses details of the Company's
share options held by the directors and other employees
and movements in such holdings during the year:

BREXNRZBRESS (F)

BRETNEEET AN AR A ZHIE AR
1T HABEE  ABZARDBRER SRR
ERBEEE RN B R h & B B R +
FREAY REMBRERAMNIETRE -

TEEDHARRNERTEE  ETBERBRME
B AARBRORE LB B2 WmE RO EER
REBRMAAEEXRAZFHRTEZRRE -

TERBEEHEETMAMEERE Z AR RBRE
AR ZEBBENFAZEEFT

Outstanding Adjustment  Outstanding Granted Lapsed  Outstanding
Date of Exercise at  inrespect of at during during at
Option type grant price 1.1.2012  Rights Issue 31.12.2012 the year the year 31.12.2013
R=2-Zf% R=2-Zf% R=B-=F
R ARMHR T-A=t+-A tZA=+-H
BRESH RHAH i HARTE ZEE HRTE ERi EREX HRTE
HK$ (note i)}
BT (R ()
Granted under Old Scheme
REEFHRL
E 7.7.2009 0.638 (note (i) 25,052,000 4,474,287 29,526,287 = (29,526,287) =
(P EEG)
Exercisable at the end of the year
RERATE 29,526,287 =
Weighted average exercise price
MEFHTHEE 0.752 0.638 0.638 - 0.638 -

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &%2&@iZiRERAHT



NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —F—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

25. IR X2 (&)

BREXNRZBRESS (F)

Outstanding  Adjustment  Outstanding Granted Lapsed  Outstanding
Date of Exercise at in respect of at during during at
Option type grant price 1.1.2012  Rights Issue 31.12.2012 the year the year 31.12.2013
R=%-=% R=B-=f R=B-Zf
-A-H AR#R t=A=t+-8 t=R=+-8
BRESH BABH (K3 HATE ZAE e FRRHE ER%A EiNd
HKS note (i)
A (B&E ()
Granted under New Scheme
REHBR M
F 24.10.2013 0.280 - - - 72,438,000 - 72,438,000
Exercisable at the end of the year
REZA{TR - -
Weighted average exercise price
mEFAGRE - - - 0.28 - 0.28
Note: M 5

(i) The number and exercise price of the outstanding share
options were adjusted as a result of completion of the
Rights Issue on 10th July, 2012.

(i) The vesting period, which is the period from the date of
grant to the exercisable date, of the share options granted is
determined by directors of the Company at each time when
the options are granted. Holders of share options granted
under the Old Scheme and New Scheme may only exercise

their options during the exercisable periods as follows:

Option type E
EEBRE

Option type F
FE R E

(i) HREZZ-_FEATAZRHEE  HRITE

BhEZHERTEELKDHE -

iy HEBREZEBEHAELAMEATEASNS
B THARREENERRHBRERETE -
REBEERFFARLZBREZREAEN

WA T AT AR TT e AL A

Maximum % of share options exercisable

AIEBRESRSED L

1.5.2010 - 30.4.2011

1.56.2011 - 30.4.2012

1.56.2012 - 30.4.2013

No share option was exercised during both years ended

1.56.2014 - 30.4.2015

1.5.2015 - 30.4.2016

1.5.2016 - 30.4.2017

31st December, 2013 and 31st December, 2012.

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, options type
F were granted on 24th October, 2013. The estimated fair

values of the options granted were HK$7,835,000.

up to 50%
= A E50%
up to 75%
B=AE75%

up to 100% (to the extent not already exercised)
= Al E100% (SAHRITHEE AR)

BE-_T-=f+-A=+—-AR-FB—_f
T A=+ —BUIREAEE  FETEREE

1T

BHE_Z—=F+_"RA=+—HILFE FEE
BREER-_Z—=FTA-THARL - 2&KH

B % 7 2 {51 A F{E 57,835,000/8 T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —FT—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

These fair values were calculated using the Binomial
model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

25. IR X2 (&)

BREXNRZBRESS (F)

ZEAFEDER-_BAAEAGE -ZRA &
ABEEMT

2013
Share price on the date of grant MR B E 2 (& HK$0.28038 T
Exercise price HK$0.2807%& T
Expected volatility 53%
Expected life from date of grant ML B R B F 3 years&
Risk free rate 0.538%
Expected dividend yield 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company's 875-day share prices before
the date of grant. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management's best estimate, for
the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and

behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised total expense of HK$2,178,000 for
the year ended 31st December, 2013 (2012: HK$204,000)
in relation to share options granted by the Company.

26. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating lease which fall due as follows:

BEHREREBEADBRE L A #8758 HifF 2
BRERBEZRBETE - ZEANERZRAFH
EmEEER A ERENE  TTERH RTANKE
ZREBERZ RIEMTAE -

REBBERABE-_ETE—=+-_A=+—81t
FEHEAQRAMBEZERESEZAI LA
2,178,000 7T (=& — =4 : 204,000/ 7T) °©

RBEHR AEERBEIATBEKLEEER KR
R BEHEENFAE - BERTIIHERE

2013 2012

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FE T FHET

Within one year 270 313
In the second to fifth years inclusive =~ FE _EEXZFERF (BHEEEME) 85 100
355 413

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its warehouse, ancillary office
properties and car parks. Lease is negotiated for an
average term of three years (2012: three years) with fixed
monthly rentals over the term of the lease.

\
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W
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —F—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

27. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 27. EXREE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of the ~ DRI #ERNEEA B HE
acquisition of plant and equipment R 2K E K&
contracted for but not provided BB AR
in the consolidated financial
statements 14,297 31,117

. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
Hong Kong

The Group has joined a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the "MPF Scheme"”) for its employees in Hong
Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to
the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme
is to make the required contributions under the MPF
Scheme.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represent contributions payable to the funds by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

PRC

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of
the salaries of their employees to the state-managed
retirement benefit scheme. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme.

During the year, the retirement benefit scheme
contributions amounted to approximately HK$5,019,000
(2012: HK$4,482,000).

8. RIRER &

&

FEBREEBEEMARIMELTESE (18
BEFEl]) - BESFERBEBRIERESFE
FEOIRBHIE A BRI EEBEM - BEEF
ECEERAKBEENDH  YABIUREAE
HZEESREE -REBRBESAERA  BERHE
BEEBARANEEN L XABRE SN
HR - ARERBRBESHE CE-—BERARE
BRI R E AR -

RirABakEMEmRa R HZREDE
BABHNFEHERSARE R ERE L XE
NESZHK -

T E

AEEZTENBAREERTERNLEZH
RERERARBHAEKE - HEBLAREB KSR
BrHMA—BOLXABERER ZRKENG
EIHR ARBRERRBANFEHZE—BEERRA
%At BIBAUS R E B AR -

FN - RREFFTEIE R4 A5,019,0008 T (=
T — 4 1 4,482,000/ 7T) ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 FE#

/

l
7

/

j

;

/

il



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B2 —F—=F+_H=1—HIFEF

The tax audits conducted by the Inland Revenue
Department (“IRD"”) on the Company and its subsidiaries
in respect of the years of assessment 2004/2005 to
2010/2011 are still on-going.

The IRD had previously issued additional assessments
to Gong Ming Hop Fung Paper Ware Factory Limited
("GMHF") for the years of assessment 2004/2005 and
2005/2006 on 2nd June, 2006 and 19th October, 2006
respectively. The taxes demanded under the additional
assessments amounted to HK$11,220,917 in aggregate.
The Group had lodged objections with the IRD against
these additional assessments.

Subsequent to the lodgement of objections by GMHF,
tax payment of HK$1,992,965 was made during the
year ended 31st December, 2006. Further, tax reserve
certificates of HK$1,717,279 in respect of the 2005/2006
assessments for GMHF, pending the outcome of the tax
audits and the objections, were purchased in December
2006 and included in “deposits and prepayments” as at
31st December 2013 and 31st December, 2012. Also,
banker’s undertakings of HK$3,828,453 were arranged by
the Group and had been accepted by the IRD as security
for payment of the mentioned tax. The remaining amounts
of tax of HK$3,682,220 demanded by the IRD have been
held over unconditionally.

In addition, the IRD issued protective assessments to
certain subsidiaries of the Group, namely Chun Yik (Macao
Commercial Offshore) Limited (“CYMCO"), Man Shung
(Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited (“MSMCQO"), Fung
Kong Hop Fung Paper Ware Factory Limited (“FKHF"),
for the year of assessment 2005/2006 in March 2012,
amounted to HK$525,000 in aggregate. The Group
lodged objections with the IRD against these protective
assessments.

Furthermore, the IRD issued protective assessments
to the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group,
namely CYMCO, MSMCO, FKHF, and GMHF, for the year
of assessment 2006/2007 in March 2013, amounted to
HK$875,000 in aggregate. The Group lodged objections
with the IRD against these protective assessments.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &%2&@iZiRERAHT

R_TTME/ _TTRAFE_T-TF =
——FRRFEMS - %aﬁ%%@ﬁﬁ%Dﬁ
ARBREMBRB 2R BZINDEETH

REBRAINSAIR -_ZEENEAA-BR-_ZZT
A¢+ﬂ+naﬁ‘%m@R%Wﬁ@“*(“
EN2_TTNF/ _ETRFR-2ZTTH
/fjjﬂiﬁmiﬁﬁﬁ%%&m R IEEE
NIRRT R AT 2 BB E 2£/811,220,917% 7T ©
AEBERZFEITVRATBERRELRE -

BE_ZEXF+_A=+—HLFE 28B4
BEXIREER B X MIIE1,992,965% 7T
VTR-ZEEZRNE+ _ARLPBEEZ_TTRF
S CEEREFHEE,717,2798 THM S -
NEBREEZIREIRE &R - WREHSFSE
REE-T—=F+_A=+—HERZ=-Z—Z=F
+-ZA=+—"BLEFEEHAEE KRB K]
We BE  AEBELZPIRTTH#YES, 828,4538 7T
EAIN LB R TR MREBHEEZZK
o H$E%EXZE%MEmw2m@xE
BEEHYE

o MBRR_E——E= AR ARE®EE T
BAR (DR ABESCRMIBIFEERY) BERA
(UE WP BIECRMBERRAERYE) A

AR (TBIBRM]) kB EA 28 MM AERA A

UHﬁé%ﬁ)Zfzgﬁﬁ/ TENFERH

FEFHFHREETH - & /5250008 7T ° A

EEEHZERBEUIHAREHIRLERE -

o HBERRZE—=F=ARAQAREE
BETHBAR (DRl AEZEM - BIBRM -
BEAEERAPHEE) 2SR /T LHF
A EEEHREMRTR - & £ /8875,000/8 T °
AEEERZEREMTRABTEBRL Y -



29.

30.

NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

The directors believe that no additional provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax in respect of the tax audit for the years
of assessment 2004/2005 and onwards is necessary at
the present stage. The directors consider that the inquiries
from the IRD are still at a fact-finding stage and the IRD
has yet expressed any formal opinion on the potential tax
liability, if any. The potential tax liability, if any, cannot be
readily ascertained at this stage.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In the previous years, the Group engaged Hop Fung
(Australia) Pty Ltd as the Group's purchase agent in
Australia at an annual fee of HK$1 for the agency
services rendered to the Group. Hop Fung (Australia)
Pty Ltd was dissolved on 25th March, 2013. For the
year ended 31st December, 2012, the total value of
goods purchased under this arrangement from the
suppliers amounted to HK$82,369,000. Hop Fung
(Australia) Pty Ltd was a company in which Mr. Hui
Sum Kwok, an executive director of the Company,
had controlling interest.

The remuneration of directors, who are key
management of the Group, during the year are
disclosed in note 12. The remuneration of executive
directors, who are also the key executives of the
Group, is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —F—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

29. AREE(E)

EXiAfE RERESHR_ZTTNF —TZTh
FRERZRAVFEZIRBEZRSBENEHRE
HBENEE -EFERR HERIDEEERKMHE
B MABRBRYRREERBAR(WH) BEX
EAMEAER - REEE RS EI T EAE
ERBAE(WH) -

BEALRS

@ RBAFE AEHE HHop Fung
(Australia) Pty Ltd &7 & B RIMN 2 IRIE R
BA - UHHERAASERR®R KBRS X
fFEE17% JT ° Hop Fung (Australia) Pty Ltd
BR-ZZE—=F=ZA-+HAHEHHBHR -BE=
T——F+-A=+—8 BEKELZHER
BB 2 B 4 E /882,369,000 7T
RARITEZTARE 5L £ B M Hop Fung
(Australia) Pty Ltd#E A1 HIHES -

30.

b) FRAEEIZEBABZEENFAZ
MERME12HE - AITESETTERAKHE
TERRTHRAR REZHMEHAFMEE
ERTFEARARTHEBEETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —FT—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

31. SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 3. KRAFHMBERARBE
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TET FAT
Investment in subsidiaries BB AR ZIEE 552,958 581,536
Amounts due from subsidiaries [ D NGIE S 1,415,640 1,524,005
Deposits and prepayments e RIEMNR 294 492
Bank balances and cash RITHEBERE 9,600 6,175
Amounts due to subsidiaries ARG B (1,293,460) (1,475,813)
Other payables and accrued charges Hfh A B R A S (6,126) (5,205)
Taxation payable FEBF IR (526) -
678,380 631,190
Share capital [N 72,439 72,439
Share premium &1 4% B 443,294 443,294
Share options reserve ARG 19,266 17,088
Retained profits (note) REFE (M) 143,381 98,369
678,380 631,190
Note: B &F
Details of the movement in the Company’s retained profits are ARARRBF Bz EBFBEHIIWOT ¢
set out below:
HK$' 000
FH&ET
At 1st January, 2012 R-E——F—A—H 54,366
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year FEMBRZEKEEE 44,003
At 31st December, 2012 RZZE—Z—_%+=-_F=+—H 98,369
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year FEMBR2EKZERE 45,012

At 31st December, 2013 R=ZF—=%+=-A=+—AH 143,381




NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —F—=Ff+-A=1—HIFE

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, all of which are
wholly-owned by the Company, as at 31st December,

2013 and 31st December, 2012 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation
or registration/

TREMT :

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/

32. FEfBARER

R-EBE—=F+-_A=+—BR-_ZT——F+=
A=+—8B ARaET2EHEEZETENBA

Name of subsidiary operations contributed capital Principal activities
L, ERTRBERE/
WEARAE XM BEARA TEEH
Chun Yik (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary shares Trading of corrugated packaging
Offshore) Limited MOP100,000
En CRMBEFHERSE) ERAA RF L AR100,0002 P9 8 RFEaEES
Fung Kong Hop Fung Paper Ware Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$100 Provision of management service
Factory Limited
BEEEARBERRR e L@R100% T RUEERHE
Non-voting deferred shares
HK$3,000,000 (note)
BREEELER
3,000,000/ 7t (M )
Fung Kong Shing Fung Paper Ware Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2 Investment holding
Factory Limited
BEAEARBERDR e LRR2ET REZR
Gong Ming Hop Fung Paper Ware Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$100 Provision of management service
Factory Limited
AREEHARBERDR s Lak100% T RUEERE
Non-voting deferred shares
HK$3,000,000 (note)
BRZERLR
3,000,0007% 7t (Pt 3%)
Green Forest (QingXin) Paper PRC Contributed capital Manufacturing and trading
Industrial Limited * US$112,247,803 of containerboard and
(equivalent to approximately corrugated packaging
HK$764,494,899)
RE(BM BEBRDRA® FE EHRA112,247,803% T BRERRFEEZBERES

(4)HRETA764,494,89975 7T)
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(continued)

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Place of
incorporation
or registration/

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
BE—F=—F+-_A=1—HIFE

32. TEMBATER (&)

Name of subsidiary operations contributed capital Principal activities
ML/ ERTRBERE/
WEARAE EEMHY BEARA TEEH
Hop Fung Consultants Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2 Provision of management service
AEEREBERAR e LRmR2ET REEERE
Hop Fung Group Company Limited British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary shares US$600 Investment holding
Hong Kong
RBERAHE/BE  TRRE00ET REZR
Hop Fung International Enterprise Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2 Provision of accounting service
Limited
AEERGEERAT B ERR2ET R EH RS
Man Shung (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary shares Manufacturing and trading
Offshore) Limited MOP100,000 of corrugated packaging
BIECRMAEREHERS) ERAA RF L AR100,0002 P9 8 REaRZBERES

Top Develop Limited

AEBRAHE EBELES LERIET REZRRBERAE S
REgnfRBERAA* PRC Contributed capital Manufacturing and trading
HK$23,000,000 of corrugated packaging
HE B 777423,000,0007% 7T EBEBEZ2ERES
A8Em(FI)BRAF* PRC Contributed capital Manufacturing and trading
HK$25,000,000 of corrugated packaging
FE B/ 7K25,000,000% 1T EBeEZRERES
Note: The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by e : EREREERTIEEANEEFE  BEBR LY

the Group, practically carry no right to dividends or to
receive notice of or to attend or vote at any annual general
meeting of the companies. On winding up, the holders of
the deferred shares are entitled to the distribution after
the distribution of HK$100,000,000 million to holders of

British Virgin Islands

Ordinary shares US$1

ordinary shares, as specified in the articles of association.

Other than Hop Fung Group Company Limited, all

subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

~ HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &2&£®mZRERAR

¥Hop Fung Group Company Limited%) -

Investment holding and
trading of containerboard

AR S - WEUE R A AT AR R E F K
BN HEIRNG LEREZER - RIE&E
BREARMEHERZANRT  ETRBHFEA
A 7 1A 3@ A% 5 B A £ k100,000,000,000,000
BILELHENIR -

ENBARISBAARREERFA -

H A



NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
subsisting as at 31st December, 2013 and 31st December,
2012 or at any time during the year.

* Green Forest (QingXin) Paper Industrial Limited, 3523 %5 4%
mAERAT and & L4 % ORI BRAF] are wholly foreign
owned enterprise.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of directors of the Company, principally
affected the results and assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

M BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2013
B —F—=F+=-FA=1—HIFE

32. TEMBLARER (&)

A

T—=Ft-_A=t-BHR=F-—-F+t=
—BRFRTMER - &M ERRDERE

S am

[

I +

* RECEH BREBRRAR RRERARER
REARAEHES ORI BERARDAZEINE
©E-

ERIHARREERAREAEEXEREESR
BYEAKBNBLAR -EFER R HHEAM
MERREMINHEEHERBRITE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEHE

Year ended 31st December,

BE+t-A=1t—-RHLEE

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000
FHET FAET FAT FHET FEx
RESULTS E¥
Revenue Wz 923,366 1,428,886 1,440,233 1,051,097 1,026,623
Cost of sales HEBA (746,425)  (1,167,934)  (1,224,150) (880,542) (853,037)
Gross profit EH 176,941 260,952 216,083 170,555 173,586
Other income Hofth g A 14,690 19,317 24,875 11,556 12,666
Selling and distribution costs HERDHKAR (36,234) (80,963) (68,624) (55,714) (60,423)
Administrative expenses THRX (61,902) (82,325) (71,108) (68,878) (71,602)
Other expenses HAx (20,389) (15,746) (34,181) (23,717) (23,735)
Finance costs 81 7% AR (10,601) (21,126) (24,370) (25,412) (24,737)
Changes in fair value of BEAERBEER
unsecured structured NEEZE
borrowing 9,464 297 - - -
Changes in fair value of TES@MIA
derivative financial NS =)
instruments 23,452 2,829 (5,815) 18,444 4,329
Profit before taxation Bt AT E 95,421 83,235 36,860 26,834 10,084
Income tax expense SRR (11,656) (11,525) (10,067) (6,245) (4,186)
Profit for the year, attributable AR FEAE A
to owners of the Company L FEFE 83,765 71,710 26,793 20,589 5,898
At 31st December,
Rt=A=+—-H
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FAT FHET FEx
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Total assets BWEE 1,737,719 1,978,055 2,066,021 2,044,395 2,024,335
Total liabilities BEE 883,304 1,030,089 1,046,216 929,988 874,537
Total equity attributable KRBHEEAA
to owners of the Company FE(h = B3R 854,415 947,966 1,019,805 1,114,407 1,149,798

\
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